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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Vikas Publishing House Private Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Staternent of Profit and Loss, including
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

Managemen(’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive incoine, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act., read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes mainienance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and complcteness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind
AS financial statemments that give a true and fair view and are fiee from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Respousibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We have taken
into account the provisions of the Act, the acconnting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be
included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as speeified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the finaneial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures i the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessinent of the
risks of material misstatemnent of the Tnd AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessinents, the auditor considers internal finaneial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Tnd
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the cireumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriatencss of accounting policics used and the
reasonableness of the aceounting estimates made by the Cempany’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Ind AS financial stalements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS finaneial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Ind AS financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a trze and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2018, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the ehanges in equity for the
year ended on that date.

S.R. Balliboi & Afsoclates LLP, a Limiled Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4295
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Slreet, Block 'C', 3rd Floor, Kolkata:700 016 .
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
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As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 1 statemnent on the
matters speeified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept hy the Company so far as it
appears from owr examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement
" with the books of account;

ln our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basts of written representations received from the direclors as on March 31, 2018, and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018, from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164 (2} of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2% to this report;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pendiilg litigation which would impact its financial position;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Proteetion
Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Y

per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership Number: 94941

Place: New Delhi

Date: 22 May 2018
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Re: Vikas Publishing House Private Limited (*the Company’)

®

(iD)

(iii)

{iv)

™)

(v)

(vii)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assels.

{b) All fixed assets were physical verified by the management in the previous year in accordance
with the planned programme of verifying them once in two years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regards to the size of the Company and natwe of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verificatior.

{c) According to the information and cxplanations given by the management, the titlc deeds of
immovable properties, included in property, plant and cquipment are held in the name of the
Company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable interval during the
year and no material discrepancies noted on such verification. Inventorics lying with third parties
have been confirmed by them on various date and no material discrepancies wete noticed in respect
of such confirmation.

According to the mformation and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loan
sccured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other partics covered in
the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provision
of clause iii(a), (b) and (¢) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upoen.

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there arc no loan,
investment guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisiens of section 185 and 186
of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon,

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specificd the
maintenance of cost records under clause 148(1) of the Companics Act 2013, for the product/services
of the Company.

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate autherities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees® state msurance, incomc-tax, service tax/goods and
service tax, value added tax, duty of custom, cess and other matcrial statutory dues applicable to it,
The provisions relating to excise duty are not applicable to the Company.
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(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)

(xif)

(xisi)

(xiv)

(xv)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed dues in respect of income-

tax which were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the datc they
became payable, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of Amount Period to whieh | Due Date Date of
statute the dues amount relates payment*

income Tax | Income Tax | 33.51 million AY 2017-18 30/09/2017 | Not yet paid
Act, 1961

*No demand has bcen raised by Income Tax Department.

(c) According to the inforination and explanation given to us, therc are no dues of income tax, sales-
tax, service tax/goods and service lax, custom duty, cxcise duty, value added tax and cess which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution or bank.
The Company does not have any dues to in respect of debenture holders or government.

According to the infornation and explanations given by the inanagement, the Company has not
raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term loans
hence, reporting under clause (ix}is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management,
we report that no fraud on or by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or
reporied during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid/provided in accordance with the requisite approval mandate by the
provision of section 197 read with schedule V to the Companies Aet 2013,

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xi} of the
order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commentced upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable
and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statcinents, as required by the
applicable aecounting standards,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or parly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting
requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, not commented upon,

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to
in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013,
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(xvi} According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S,R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
CAIT Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004

e

per Yogesh Midba
Partner
Membership Number: 94941

Place: New Delhi
Date; 22 May 2018
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF YIEAS PUBLISHING HOUSE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Vikas Publishing House Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Managenment’s Responsibility for Internal Finaneial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal finaneial controls based on
the internai control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities inelude the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
cnsuring the orderly and efficieut conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timmely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing as specified under scction 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial conirols and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain rcasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over fmancial reporting with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintaimed and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating eflfectiveness.
Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of intemnal
financial controls over financial reporting with rcference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and tcsting and evaluating the design and operating cffectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, meluding the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statcments, whether due to fraud or crror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriatc to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Finaneial
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's intenal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statemenits includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Confrols Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over {inancial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the intemnal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control statcd in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

i e

per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership Number: 94941

Place: New Delhi
Date: 22 May 2018



Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Balancc sheet as al 31 Mareh 2018

CIN: J74889DL1971PTC005766 (Rs. In million)

Notes As afl As af As at

31 Mareh 2018 . 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Assets
Non-¢urrent assels
Property, plant and cquipment 3 724.69 T .64 675.81
Intangible assets
~ Goadwill 4 236 2.36 2.36
~ Other Infangible asscls 4 134.76 117.39 85.15
Capital work-in-progress 1.95 - 0.67
Financial asscts
- hvestments 5A 70.00 70.00 8420
- Loans 5C 10.14 12.42 6.02
- Other financial assets SE 3.06 4.02 22.84
Other non-current asscls 7 4.15 b 5.69
ncome lax assels {nel) D 1.43 1.43 -
Deferred lax asscls (net) 8 0.99 521 3.34
Total non-¢urrent assets 953.53 917.18 886.08
Currcnt assets
Invenlories 6 408.14 48791 367.89
Financial assels
- Trade receivables 5B 1,567.18 1,574.33 1,273.40
- Loans 5C 23.16 26,13 20.26
- Cash and cash equivalents 5D 112,55 112.45 95.60
- Other financial assets 5E 775 37.26 -
Other current assets 7 4.61 4.29 4.38
Tolal currcnt asscts 2,123.39 2,242,37 1,761.53
Total assets 3,076.92 3,159.55 2,647.61
Equiiy and liabllities
Equity
Equity share capital 9 4.0 4.M 4.01
Olhier equity
- Refained earnings 10 1,339.22 1,097.78 927.63
- Other reserves 10 101.29 99,27 98.01
Total equity 1,444.52 1,201.06 1,029.65
Non-current linbilitles
Finaneial liabilitics
- Borrowiugs 11A 447.95 263.93 334.01
- Trade payables [2 - - 0.62
Provisions 4 34.17 19.62 19.40
Tolal non ¢urrent Liabillties 482.12 283.55 354.03
Current Habilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 1B 479.30 511.85 464.95
- Frade payables 12 493.19 862.06 666.87
- Other financial labilities £3 7326 195.73 65.36
Provisions 14 7215 64.75 29.54
Other current liabilities 15 32.38 40.55 37.21
Total eurrent liabilitics 1,150.28 1,674.94 1,263.93
Total equity aud liabilitics 3,076.92 3,159.55 2,647.61
Suminary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an inlegral parl of {he financial statements.

As per our repord of even dale

For S.R, Batllbol & Assoeiates LLP
1CAI Firm Repisteation No. 101049Y / E300004

Charlered Accountants
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per Yogesh Midha
Partner

Membership No,; 94941

Place: New Delhi
Date: 22 May 2018
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DIN: 0053988
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For aud on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vikas Publishing House Private Li

ed

Himansiiu Gupla
TN: 0054015



Vikas Publlshing House Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2018
CIN: U74882DL1971 FTCH05766

(Rs. In million}

For the year cnded  For the year ended

Notes 31 Maren 2018 31 March 2017
I  Revenue from Operations 6 2,045.11 2,401.05
. Other Income 17 2.85 3712
1T Total Income (1411} 2,047.96 2,438.17
1V Expenses
Cost of raw material consumed 18 435.49 89996
Cosl of prinling malerial consumed 19 126.86 109.08
(Increasc)/decrease in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 20 (38.05) (70.27)
Publication expenses 21 333.05 415,01
Employee benefits expense 22 340.22 295.46
Selling and distribation expenscs 23 189.58 175.08
Finance cost 24 122,55 131.16
Depreciation and amortisation expense 25 49,88 92.08
Other expenses 26 123.92 136.38
Total expenses 1,683.50 2,183.94
vV Profit before tax (III-IV) 36446 254.23
VI Tax expense:
Current 1ax 112.16 91.32
Deferred tax (eredit)/ charge 6,15 (3.7
Total tax expenses 118.31 87.53
VII Profit for the year (V-VI) 246.15 166.70
YIII Other Comprehensive Income 27
- Items that will not be reclassified to profit or toss
Re-measurement (gains)/losses on defined benefil plans (6.65) 5.36
Tax impact on re-measurement (gain)/ loss on defined benefit plans 1.94 (1.91)
IX ‘Tolal Compreliensive Income for the year (VII + VIII)
(Comprising Profit and Other Comprehensive Income for the year) 241.44 170.15
X Earnings per equity share (Amount in Rs.) 28
(1) Basic 6,132 4,153
(2) Diluted 6,132 4,153
Summary of significant acconnling polieies 2.

The aceompanying nofes are an infegral part of the financial stalements.
As per our report of cven dale

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLI
ICAIFirm Registration No. 101049W / E300004
Chartered Accountauts

pEI; Yopesh Midha
Partner
Membership No,: 94941

Place : New Delhi
Date: 22 May 2018

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited

oA
SavitrGupta
DIN: 0053988 : 0054015



Vikas Pnblishing Honse Private Limiled
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31s1 March 2018
CIN, UT4889DL 1971PTC5766

(Rs. in miltlon)

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

(Rs)
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profil before 1ax 364.46 254,23
Adjustinent 1o reconcile profit belore lax 1o nel cash flows:
Deprecialion and amontizalion 49.88 92.08
Einployee sloek oplion expense 202 1.26
Amounl wrillen baek - {0.22)
Interest expense 119.34 126.17
Inderesd ineome (2.41) (2.63)
Loss on fixed assels sold 026 0.85
Profit on sales of Invesliment - {32.60)
Bad debis written of[ 1,97 0.81
Provision for bad & doubtful debis 12.14 26.10
Operating profit before workiug capital changes 547.66 466.05
Adjnstments for changes in working capital :
(lnerease)/deerease in trade reeeivables (6.95) {321.84)
(Inerease)/decrease in olher non-current assels and in other currenl assels 0.08 045
{Increase)/ deerease in loans & advauces 524 (12.26)
{Increase)/decrease in invenlories 79.76 (120.02)
(Inerease)/decrease in other financial assels 30.48 {18.44)
Tnerease/(decreasc) in frade payabies (368.87) 194,80
Ierease/(decrease) in ofher financial liabilities 33,83 {0.19)
Increase/{decrease) in other current liabililies (3.03) 178
Increase/(decrease) in long tenn provisions 1.90 559
Cash generated from/{uscd In) operations 32611 195.92
Dreel 1ax paid {104.74) {57.55)
Nel eash generatced from operation (A) 221.37 138.37
B. Cash flow from investing aetivities
Purchase of property, planl and cquipment, capital advances and ¢apital work in progress (97.26) (158.12)
(nct of capital credilor)
Praceeds from sale of property, plant and cquipent 4.02 B.09
Proceeds from sale of investiment - 46,80
Iniezest recejved 241 2.63
Net cash used in Investiog aetivities M) {90.83) (100.50)
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Procecd/(Rcpayment) fir loug-tenn borrow ings(nel) 2145 58.35
Proceeds/(Repayment) fom short tenn borrowings (net) {32,55) 4690
Inicrest paid {119.34) (126,17}
Net cash from financing activities C) {130.43) {20.92)
Net increase in cash & cash cquivalents (A+D+C) 010 16.85
Cash and cash egnivaleuls - at Lhe beginning of the year 112.45 95.60
Cash and cash cgnivalents - at the end of the year 112,55 112.45
Componcuts of cnsh and eash egnivalents
Cash in hand 0.10 1.08
Balance wilh banks on currenl accounts 90,76 111.37
Cheques in hand 21.6% -
Tolal Cnsh and casb equivalents (refer note SD} 112.55 112.45
Non-gash investing and flnaucing transnction
Acquisition nf property, plant and equiptnent by means of a finance lease 6.24 213
Noles:
1. Reconciliation of liabililies arsing from financing aclivilies
. As at Casl Asat
Particulars 31 March 2017 flows Non cash changes | 31 March 2018
Long tenn borrowings {includiug current maturity) 451,27 2170 - 478.97
Shord term borrewings 511.835 {32.55) - 479.30
963,12 (4.85) - 958.27
Smnmary of significant aeconntiug policles 2.1

The accompanying noles are an inlegral part of Lhe financial statelents,
A3 per our report of cven date

For S.R, Datlibol & Assoclates LLP
1C Al Firm Regisiration No, 101049% / E300004
N h?'!ered Acenuntants
| % e
Lé}{;’%;ﬁ-‘*‘”
per Yogesh Midin
Partuer

Mcmbership No.: 94941

Place : New Delhi
Date: 22 May 2018

For and on belialf of the Board of Tireclors of
Vikas Pnblishing Honse Privatg,l—;fmiled
A ”
e// / e
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- + v Q
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imanshu Gupta

o DIN: 0054015

" DIN: 005398



Vikas Publishing House Privale Limited
Stalemenl of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2018
CIN: U74889DLISTAPTCO05766

A, Eqnity share caplinl:

Issued, suhseribed and flly paid up {Share of T 100 each)

Nuo, of shares  {Rs. in million)

At1Aprli2016 40,140 201
Issued dnring the year - -
ALl March2017 40,140 4.01
Issued during ihe year - -
At March 2018 40,140 4.01

B. Other equity {Rs. in miltion)
Reserve & Surplus ]

Retained L General Revaluation Deemed cagital Tatal

earnings reserve reserve contribution
As at 1st April 2016 927.63 46.30 51,21 0.50 1,025.64
Profil for the year 166.70 - - - 166,70
QOther comprehensive inceme for the year 345 - - - 345
Total Coniprebensive Ineome for the year 17015 - - - 170.15
Share based payments - - - 126 1.26
As at 31st March 2017 1,097.78 46.:0 5121 1,76 1,19705
Profit for Lhe year 246.15 - - - 246.15
Olher comprehensive income for {he year (4.71) - - - 4.71)
Total Comprebenslve Income for the year 241,44 - - - 241.44
Share based paymenis - - - 2.02 202
As at 31st March 2018 1,339.22 46.30 51.21 378 1,440.51

Sulnmary of signifieant accounting policies 2]

The accompanying noles are an inlegral parl of the Ananeial slalements.
As per our repos] of even dale

For 8.R. Datlihol & Assaeintes LLP
ICAI Firm Reglstrntion Ne. 101049V / E300004
Charlered Acconntanls

“per Yopesh Midha
Pariner
Membership No.: 94941

Place : New Delhi
Date: 22 May 2018

For and on hehall of the Board of Directors of
¥luas Publishiog House Private Limited

. Mf’f‘
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/)»itﬂ‘tupta f
DIN: 0053988 i
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2.2

Yikas Pnblishing Honse Private Limited
Notes to finaneial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018
{(Amonnts in Rs Million, unless otherwise stated)

Corporate information

Vikas Publishing House Private Limited (the Company) is a private company domiciled in India and incorporated under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, Vikas has head office in Delhi and corporate office at Noida, Uttar Pradesh
and warchouse at Sahibabad, Uttar Pradesh and has seven sales offices in the cities of Mumbai, Patna, Lucknow,
Ahmadabad, Bangalore, Chennai and Kolkata. These are standalone financial statements and, accordingly, these Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) financial statements incorporate amounts and disclosures related to the Company only.

The Company is engaged in printing and publishing of college text books, school textbooks, and mass-market books and
provides job work services to its customers.

Significant acconnting polieies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Aecounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 (Indian GAAP).

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2017 the Company prepared its financial statements in
accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with .
paragraph 7 of the Compamies (Aecounting Standards) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2016 (Indian GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 are the first the Company has
prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Refer note 50 on how the Company adopted Ind AS,

The financial statements have been preparcd on a historical cost conventiorn, except for the following assets and liabilities
whieh have been measured at fair value.

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer aceounting policy regarding finaneial instruments),
i1) Equity settled employee share-based payment plan

The financial statements are presented in INR (Indian Rupees) and all values are rounded to the nearest Million (INR
1,000,000), except when otherwise indicated.

Current versns non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilitics in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current ¢lassifieation.
An asset is classified as current when:
i.  Ttis expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

ii. Tt is held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii. It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv.  Cash or cash equivalent unless restrieted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period.

All other assets are elassified as non-current,

A liability is classified as current when:
i Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
il.  Ttis held primarily for the purpose of tradmg
fii. It is due to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

iv.  Thereis no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Foreign currencies

Funetional and presentational eurrency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, which is also the Company's functional currency.
Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which an entity operates and is normally
the currency in which the entity primarily generates and expends cash.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot rates at the date
the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curmrencies are translated at the functional cunrency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items arc recognised in the Staternent of Profit
and Loss.

Fair value measurement

The Comnpany measures eertain financial instruments and equity seftled employee share based payment plan at fair value
at each reporting date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value mecasurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the hability takes place either:

i. in the principal market for the assct or liability, or

ii. in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantagcous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is mcasured using the assumptions that market participants would usc when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate econornic
bencfits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to anothcr market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that arc appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant obscrvable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservablc inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is mecasurcd or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair valuc hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measuremicent as a whole:

iii. Level I — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in actiygduarkets for identical assets or liabilities

P

e
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iv,

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or mdirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are reeognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company deterimines
whether transfers have oeeurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation {based on the lowest
level input that is signifieant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, unquoted financial asseis, and significant liabilities,
such as valuation of nnquoted investments and equity settled employee share based payment plan. Involvement of
external valuers is decided upon annually by the Company’s management. Selection criteria inelude market knowledge,
reputation, mdependenee and whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the Company’s management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s aecounting policies, For this analysis, the
Company’s management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to eontraets and other relevant documents.

The Company’s management, in conjunetion with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair
value of each assct and liability with relevant external sourees to determine whether the change is reasonable,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined elasses of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, eharacteristies and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting poliey for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes.

e Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions {(Note 49)

¢ Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy {Note 45)

¢ Investment in unquoted equity shares (Note 5A)

o Financial instruments {including those earried at amortised eost) (Note 45)

¢ Equity Settled employee share based payment plan (Note 47)

Revemue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue ean be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made, Revenue is measured at the fair value
of the eonsideration received or receivable, taking into aceount eontractvally defined terms of payment and excluding
taxes or duties colleeted on behalf of the government. The Company has eoneluded that it is the principal in all of its
revenue arrangements sinee it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements, has pricing latitude, and is also
exposed to inventory and credit risks.

Sales tax/ Value added tax (VAT) Goods and services Tax {GST) is not received by the Company on its own aceount.
Rather, it is tax eollected on value added to the commeodity by the seller on behalf of the government, Aecordingly, it is

exeluded from revenue,

The specific reeognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is reeognised.
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Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the eonsideration reeeived or
receivable, net of sales retumns, turnover discounts and eash discounts.

The provision for anticipated returns is made primarily on the basis of historieal sales return trend. The provision for
turnover discount and cash discount is made on estimated basis based on historical trends.

Sale of services
Serviee income is recognized on accrual basis as and when services are provided and invoices raised during the year.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and other interest-bearing financial asscts, interest income is
recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR).EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash reeeipts
over the expected life of the finaneial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross earrying amount of
the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contraetual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement
of profit or loss.

Income taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be rccovered from or paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Aet, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
arc those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates
and generates taxable income,

Current income tax rclating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OC1 or directly in cquity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with respeet to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subjeet to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate,

Deferred tax
Deferrcd tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amnounts for finaneial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

i. When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaetion, affects ncither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss

ii. In respeet of taxable temporary differenccs associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be eontrolled and it is probablc that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are rccognised for all deductible temporary diffcrences, the carry forward of unuscd tax eredits and
any unused tax losses. Deferrcd tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses ean be utilised, except:
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i. When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affeets neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

il. In respcet of deduetible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at eachi reporting date and redueed to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovercd.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enaeted at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax relatimg to items recognised outside profit or loss is reeognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either m other comprehensive ineome or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off eurrent tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Property, plant and eguipment

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), property, plant and equipment, exeept land and building aequired before 1
April 2016, were carried in the balance sheet at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and aceumulated impairment
losses, if any. The Company has elccted to continue with the earrying value for all its item of property, plant and
equipment as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial as deemed cost at the transition date, viz, April 01, 2016,

On March 31, 2006 the company revalued its land and building situated at Sahibabad. This land and building are
measured at fair value on the revaluation date less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, recognized
after the date of revaluation. In case of revaluation of fixed assets, any revaluation surplus is credited to the revaluation
reserve.

Capital work in progress, plant and cquipment are stated at eost, net of aeccumulated depreciation and/or aceumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met, When significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its
cost is recogniscd in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. All other repair and maintenanee costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incuned. The
present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset after its use, is included in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met,

In accordance with Ind AS 101 provisions related to first titme adoption, the Company has elected to apply Ind AS
aeeounting for business eombinations prospectively from 1% April 2016, As such, Indian GAAP balances relating to
business combinations entered into before that date, have been carried forward with no adjustments. (Refer Note 3).

Depreciation
Till March 31, 2017 depreciation on property, plant and equlpment was being provided on written down value method.
W.e.l. April 01, 2017 depreciation is being provided on st Tgighblipe method. .~
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Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold improvements, have been provided on pro-rata
basis, on the straight line method, using rates determined based on management’s technical assessment of useful
economie lives of the asset,

Followings are the estimated useful lives of various eategory of assets used.

Category of assets Useful life as adopted by management | Useful life as per Schedule I1
Plant and equipment 15 - 25 years 15 years
Offieec Equipment 5- 15 years 5 years
Furniture & fixture 10 years 10 years
Vehicle 8 - 10 years 8 years
Others — Computer 3 - 6 years 3 years
Electrical Installations 10 years 10 years
Building {including factory building) 40 - 60 years 30 years

Leaschold improvements are amortised over eeonomie useful life or unexpired period of lease whichever is less. Assets
costing T 5,000 or less are depreeiated entirely in the year of purehase.

The Company, based on technieal assessment made by teehnieal expert and management estimate, depreeiates ecrtain
items of plant and machinery, vehicles, ecomputers and building over estimated useful lives whieh are different from
useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, The management believes that these estimated useful
lives are rcalistie and refleet fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and cquipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economie benefits are expeeted from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of
the asset (caleulated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is ineluded
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is dereeognised,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of deprcciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at cach
financial year end and adjusted prospeetively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), intangible assets were carried in the balance sheet at eost, net of accumulated
amortization and aceumulated impairment losses, if any. The Company has eleeted to continue with the carrying value
for all its item of intangible assets as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial as deemed cost at the transition date, viz,
April 01, 2016.

In accordanee with Ind AS 101 provisions related to first time adoption, the Company has elected to apply Ind AS
accounting for business combinations prospectively from April 01, 2016, As such, Indian GAAP balances relating to
business combinations entered into before that date, including goodwill, have been carried forward with no adjustments
{rcfer Note 4).

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets acquircd separately are measured on initial recognition at eost. The eost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally penerated
intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when it is incurred.

Amortisation and useful lives
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. .~
s




2.9

Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018
(Amounts in Rs Million, unless otherwise stated)

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected uvseful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economie benefits embodied in the asset are
accounted for by ehanging the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amnortisation expense on intangible asscts with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives arc notamortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is revicwed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful lifc from indefinite to finite is made on a
prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are mcasured as the difference between the net disposal
procecds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecogniscd,

Research and development costs

Rescarch costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as
an intangible asset when the company can demonstrate all the following:

i.  Thetechnical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale. Its intention
to complete the asset.

ii.  Its ability to use or sell the asset. How the asset will generate future economic benefits
iii.  The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset
iv.  The ability to measure reliably the expenditure atiributable to the intangible asset during development.

Foliowing the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the
asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the
asset begins when developient is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized on a straight line basis over
the period of expected future benefit from the related project. Amortization is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortization method used | Internally
generated or
acquired
Computer software Finite (5 years) Amortized on straight line basis | Aequired
over the period of useful lives
Goodwill on business | Indefinite No amortization Acquired
combination
Copyrights Finite (5 years) Amortized on straight line basis | Acquired
over the period of copyright
Content development Finite (10 scasons) Amortized on straight line basis | Internally generated
L over the period of content

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attibutable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended vse or sale are capitaliscd as part of the cost of the asset. All other
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borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at
the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not
explieitly speeified in an arrangement.

Cowipany as a Lessee

A lcase is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease. An operating lease is a
lease other than a finance lease.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of eost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each preduet to its present location and condition is accounted for as follows:

» Raw materials: cost ineludes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringimg the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

» Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating eapaeity, but excluding borrowing costs, Cost is determined
on first in, first out basis.

« Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and eondition. Cost is determined on First In, First Qut (FIFQ) basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary eourse of business, less estimated eosts of eompletion
and the estimated eosts necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of non—financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indieation that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An assel’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or eash-generating wnit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, When
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its reeoverable amount, the asset is eonsidered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount.

Tn assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects eurrent market assessments of the time value of money and the risks speeific to the asset. In determining
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market (ransactions are taken into aceount, If no sueh transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These caleulations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted
share prices for publiely traded eompanies or other available fair value indieators.

The Company bases its impairment ealeulation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to whieh the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and foreeast
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to project futurc cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most
recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining
growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or
for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determince whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. 1f such indieation exists, the Company
estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised, The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the earrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the earrying value may be iinpaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the reecoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its cairying amount, an impairment loss is
reeognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill eannot be reversed in future periods.

Financial Instruments

A fiancial instrument is any eontract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity,

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales
of finaneial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group comtnits to purchase or
sell the asset.

Subsequent nieasnrement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i. Financial assets at amortised cost

ii, Debt instruments at fair value through other eomprehensive income (FVTOCT)
iif. Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
iv. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost
A ‘“financial instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following eonditions are met:
i. The asset is held within a business model whose objeetive is to hold assets for collecting contractual eash flows, and
ii, Contractual terms of the asset give rise on speeified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of prineipal and
interest (SPPY} on the principal ammount cutstanding.
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After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking mto aceount any diseount or pretmium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss.
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A debt instruments is elassified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

e The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and sclling the financial
assets, and

e The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCT category are measured iitially as well as at each reporting date at fair
valuc. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (QCI). However, the Company
recoghizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-
recogmition of the asset, eumulative gain or loss previously recogniscd in OCI is reclassificd from the equity to P&I..
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCT debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Equity instrnments at FYTOCI

All equity instruments in seope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value, Equity instruments which are held for trading
and contingeut consideration recogniscd by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, thc group may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income. The group makes such election on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevoeable.

If the company dccides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
cxcluding dividends, arc recognized in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale
of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within thc FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
P&I..

Financial assets at FYTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial assets, which does not meet the critcria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to classify a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL, Howcver, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency {referrcd to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category arc measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily

derecognised (i.e. rcmoved from the Comipany’s standalone balance shcet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the assct have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to reccive cash flows from the assct or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through* arrangement; and either (a)
the Company has transfcrred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) thc Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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When the Cotnpany has transferred its rights to receive eash flows from an asset or has entered info a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
company eontinues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximun amount of eonsideration that the Company could be required to
repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In aceordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss {ECL) model for measurement and

recognition of impairment loss on the following finaneial assets and credit risk exposure:

+ Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank
balance

e Financial assets that are measured as at FYTOCI

* Lease receivables under Ind-AS 17.

e Conlract assets and trade receivables under Ind-AS 18,

e Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL.

¢ Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

i.  Trade receivables, and
ii.  All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impaivment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the eredit risk since initial recognition, If eredit risk has not increased
significanily, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has inereased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reveris to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expeeted credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected lifc of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL. is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the differenee between all contraetual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contraet
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to rcceive {i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When
estimating the eash flows, an entity is required to consider:

s All contractual terms of the financial instrument {including prepayment extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the finaneial instrument
cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is rcquired to use the remaining contractual term of the finaneial
instriment.

¢ Cash flows from the salc of collateral held or other eredit enhaneemcents that are integral to the contraetual terms.
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As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of
its trade receivables, The provision matrix is based on its historically observed defauit rates over the expected life of the
trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historieal observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Company has estimated
provision of 3.51% is required to be made on outstanding receivables at the reporting date:

Age bracket Not due 0-215days | 215 — 365|365
days days
Credit Loss Rate 0.02% 0.86% 23.10% 100% 100%

730 | More than 730 days

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/expense in the
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses” in the P&L. The balance
sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is deseribed below:-

a) For financial assets measured as at amortised cost and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as
an integral part of the measurement of those assets i the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying
amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduee impairment allowance from the
gross carrying amount.

b) Loan commitments and financial guarantce contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as
a liability.

¢) Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment
allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accurnulated impairment
amount’ in the OCL

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of
shared eredit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) finaneial assets, i.e., financial assets
which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Finaneial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as finaneial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effeetive hedge, as appropriate,

All finaneial liabilities are recognised initfally at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of direetly atiributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts,

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for frading and financial iabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value throug&g_lgﬁt or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
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trading if they are ineurred for the purpose of repurehasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for tradiné
are reeognised in the profit or loss.

Finaneial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as sueh at the
initial date of reeognition, and only if the eriteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses attributable to ehanges in own credit risk are rccognized in OCIL These gainsfloss are not
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other ehanges in fair value of such liability are recognised i the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. Aftcr initial recognition, interest-bearing lcans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are dereeogniscd as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is caleulated by taking
into aecount any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to
borrowings.

Financial guarantce contracts

Finaneial guarantee contraets issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it ineurs becausc the speeificd debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee eontraets are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for
transaetion costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at
the higher of the amount of loss allowanee determined as per impairment requirements of Ind-AS 109 and the amount
recognised less cumulative amortisation.

De-recognition

A financial liability is dereeognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the tcrms
of an existing liability are substantially modificd, such an exchange or modification is trcated as the de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss

Re-classification of Financial Asscts

The Company determines elassification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition,
no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets
which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a ehange in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines
change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company
either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. 1f the Company reelassifies financial
assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reelassification date which is the first day of the immediately
next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised
gaims, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest,

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and finaneial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a eurrently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a nct basis, to rcalise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit im the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident
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fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for
service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme
is recognized as a liability after dedueting the contribution already paid, If the contribution already paid exeeeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent
that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund,

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund,

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, exeluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit
to retained earnings through OCl in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
¢ The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
¢ The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company

recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

e Service cosls comprising current serviee costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

e Net interest expense or income.

Compensated absences

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employce benefit.
The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of
the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to
be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain,
The expense relating to a provision is presetited in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a cumrent pre-tax rate that refleets,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise eash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
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For the purpose statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and in hand and short term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period atiributable to equity shareholders of
the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on eonversion of all the dilutive
potential equity shares into equity shares.

Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the Company

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws
m India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised
dircetly in equity.

Non-eash distributions are mecasured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fanr value re-measurement
recogmiscd directly in equity.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying
amount of the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

All amounts disclosed in the finaneial staterents and notes have been rounded off to the nearest millions as per the
requirement of Schedule ITI, unless otherwise stated.

Standards issued but not yet effective
a. Ind AS 115 — Revenne from contracts with eustomers

Ind AS 115 was notified on 28 March 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with eustomers, Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expeets to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The new revenuc standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under Ind AS. Either a full retrospective application or a
modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018, The Company will
adopt the new standard on the required effective date using the modified retrospective method. The Company has
established an implementation team to implement Ind AS 115 related to the recognition of revenue from contracts with
customers and it continues to evaluate the changes to accounting system and processes, and additional disclosure
requircments that may be necessary. A reliable estimate of the quantitative impact of ITnd AS 115 on the financial
statements will only be possible once the implementation projeet has been completed.

b. Amendments to Ind 112 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Clarification of the scope of disclosure
requirements in Ind AS 112

The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in ITnd AS 112, other than those in paragraphs B10-B16, apply

to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate (or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an
associate) that is elassified (or included in a disposal group that is elassified) as held for sale,

y”Losses
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The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits against
which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which
taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying ainount.

Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial application of the amendments, the
change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be recognised in opening retained earnings (or in
another component of equity, as appropriate), without allocating the change between opening retained camings and
other components of equity. Entities applying this relief must disclose that fact,

These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018, These amendments are not
expected to have any impact on the Company as the Company has no deductible temporary differences or assets that
are in the scope of the amendments.

d. Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign Cnrrency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Appendix clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or imcome (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to
advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, then the entity must determinc the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Entities may apply the Appendix requirements on a fully retrospcctive basis. Alternatively, an entity may apply these
requirements prospeetively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope that are initially recognised on or after:

(i) The beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the Appendix, or

(ii) The beginning of a prior reporting period prescnted as comparative inforimation in the finaneial statcments of the
reporting period in which the entity first applies the Appendix.

The Appendix is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018, However, since the Company’s current
praetice is in line with the Interpretation, the Company does not expect any effect on its financial statements.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards and interpretations

The Company applied for the first time certain amendments to the standards, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2017. The nature and the impact of each amendment is described below:

Amendments to Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows; Disclosure Initiative

The amendments rcquire entities to provide disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from eash flows and non-cash changes {such as forcign exchange gains or losses). The
Company has provided the information for both the current and the comparative period in Cash Flow Statement.

Amendments to Ind AS 102 Classification and Measurcment of Share-based Payment Transactions

The amendments to Ind AS 102 Share-based Payment addresses three main areas: the cffects of vesting conditions on
the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-based payment
transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations; and accounting where a modifieation to the
terms and conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity settled.




L9%P AQ pasBalom AE3A Juaiind Jo} Juoig

0867 PO U] WDrens Jod se uoneeaidaq

Ly bl POISWT AN[EA TMOP UaL Id s wonemaxdaq

uoifjru u £y SUE[AAHEL

#0[2q uAld ST 3BWNS? W 5Turqd Jo PBdU "g[~£ [T 194 [ErUTNy wol Juawditha put J0ed Ausd0Id U0 UORUIoa1dap JO SJUUINss I [ORUEYD Sel AWEAWO) S} 9UIG 210N

"SI5B2] 22UBUL] PL[ST U 107 ALm235 sw padpald oIe $12558 Pased] S1ORRUOS §3583]
S0TENY 1aptm (RO $1°7 ¥ 1L{07 ABA 1£) TONIIE 79 5 3pU[OUL feak 1 JuLmp SEONIPPY (N 19107 [LdY T UONIII $¢°1 $ :£1(T YOTRIA [£) DOMNU gz §¥ Seas BTOT el [ 18 S102Q00 $3589] F0MWEUT JOPU BI3 S3oryaa J0 snfes Suliies off 4,

859 VST el PToL [T 9 rRrE T670T D6 EL SS9 ST0% 1AV 1T 38 7500 PO a3
T66157) Tevl) (078 T sn Gsv) ¥l (5890 T P1) 05 e TONWISI0op poe UGSy
9L°LE6 9RLT 9057 9665 7L 58l LESTS SE61T 5651 T6FL Y20[q 55015}
" Suon E([EIsaf awainby SO FUIYIELY EEIFITY) pue

19eL sumnduiod 1E213991% 1) SlEa » synung pauey  ORRABINE  gypng PloyasE |
ROPY WaOTS St PaIB[NI[E) SLHTOL AV 10 I8 58 507 30N,
60vIL [T 9% 95l Iv's 08 [TAL T 16l 90El L6'T8 SI07 WIS IE 19 5¥
PO TOL 0T 0011 LTFT 98T 579 7T 68 15761 §CEl e 107 I8N LE 1 5%
8528 PeE 98 F1 vT9L 57T ) [ TE 0T 06°ET 5759 9107 0V 1 3% 5
: FEICRET
£9°701 e LTS 8E6 T 6T ) S9El T80 STC 107 Y2I8IN] 1 3% 5V
080) k00 - - - 000} (5.70) - - - snomanpac]
08'67 00'1 1£1 SLT §8'0 580 05’81 PEE 7T vl Tea ot 107 aErEyS
£9EL 50T 98E 99 8L 50T LLSh TR 90 PIT LTOT Y IBW [£ 1V SV
90 (8£70) - (100 (60'0) 00°0) @ro) - - - suonanpac
SThL Wz 98¢ +9° LTl 90T Xid €07 790 PIT 1eak 51 101 998G

- - - - - - - - - - 9107 [udy 1 3¢ sV
uoneRasdsp pREmmnssy

TELIR 09°% 98I ¥6'TZ 8701 $6°8 79°08F I§'H0T 061 57’59 8107 4B £ 3¢ 5V

(305 [CT)] - - - (000} ©0'5) - - - stesodsiy
£I°4§ [4ul - ¥z ¥T9 050 £9°'9F - 0 - SUOTIPPY

LTSLL STy 98y 08°0T PO’y _S€% 66'SEF T6H0T 06'El 5759 LI0T YBIN TE I 5

656 (88°0) - {zo'0) {FE0) (Z0'0) (zeg) - - - sesodsiq

50°601 15T - 85F 1T ¥6'1 68'86 - - - ’ SToppY

18°6L9 ¥ 98°¥1 ¥T'91 sTT 9 TFSKE 767407 06°EL $T'59 «9107 1udy [ jE 38 1503 pawsaa(]

3201q 55015y

SUORBEISU]  Juewidimby Tssumig EYEIOTEL 1Y ECTTT) [T}
15101 sianduio)y joauer 2o HEEPA 5 aamgumg paueyg  CORTABMPUNE gy pg proyaseay

yuawdinba pue yued ‘Guadoay ‘g

992000 LA ILGITAGSEFLIL (NID
2107 Y3IE [£ 1€ §¢ JUSNIIIEIS [FOTENL] 0] SHON
PANWIT ALY 3sN0H Bunysgag SEHIA



"a8Ipq2 Jusuriedwy UB U1 J[usaI PINOI PUE aN[EA JTE] JO UCHIBIULSD 24) Wl S5TRYD & 25NED ABUI

SUOLHpUOd JoaewW ur o5ULyy asiaApe Ue 1o spoadsoxd Jratp pue sessaulsng ano jnoqe suondwinsse Aoy wt saSURY) ISIIAPE AUY "SMO[J Ysed amynt Jo suonsalold pue sueid ssauwsng ‘synsa Superado Smipnpm
‘suondinmsse SnOLReA 92N 2 “3N[EA ITE] ST SUITIUL)SP USYA, NMotwe SWALIED S| MO[9q IN[EA JEJ SUL 321Pal JOU URLY AT24I] SI0UI PIAds JE() SIOURISHINOILD Ul 35URD IO JUAAA UB JO USLINDI0 UG IO
51098 JMIOU0ID FRRO pue uonnadwod ‘puetIsp “9IUISI0SQO JO S10aLFa S S8 [INS “ISLE juatnedur Jo SKOJBdIPUI JI 10 ‘1€ YAUBA o AJ[enuue 1seay Je jusurnedun [mpoos 107 159) suuopad Auedmro)) sy

Mmpoos Jo Sus2) Juameduy

IS°L8 9T 9Lt 6£°08 9107 IMdY je SE 1503 paliaaq
(8T's¢} (9t°6) (40 (ESTD) UOnEIS3Xdep PAIE[INDIY
6L°TTL 2811 09 26701 H301q $5010
Quae)
€101 [ILpoosy s,alemyjog yudmo))  ISHOY-uJ Swipmpimy)
ymamdopasp Juague))

M0]3q UAOGYS SE PAEB[NI[E ST 91T PAdY [ 1€ SE IS0 T10N 4
£TiE] 9¢°T 1IZF 95°0€1 8107 YIEIN I€ 1B SY
9L°6L1 9£°T SI'E STHIL LTOT URIERN 1€ 1E S
15°L8 9€°T 9L’ 6£°08 9107 dy 1 1e SY

H30Iq 313N
88°LE - 8L°T 01°s¢ $T0T YMEIA £ 18 SV
- - - - sfesodsyq
20°0Z - §L°0 £€°61 Jea4 1) 10J UGHIEZILIOWY
08°LL - £0°T LLST LTOT YMEIN [£IE SY
- - - - spesodsiq
08°L1 - €07 LLST 1234 31} 10] UCTHEZILIOWY
- - - - 9107 [udV [ e sy
nonena1dap pajemmnIdy
10°SLT 9T 669 99°591 STOT Y2HER [£IESY
- - - - sesodsi(]
SFLE - 1%°1 $9°CE JUIWdO[3ASP [BUIUL/SISTI ML
95°LET 9t°T 1% Z0°0£T LTI0T Yolely [€ 1B SV
- - - - sresodsy(]
008 - Fa A\ £9'6% JusWdo[asap TBIIUY/SISEY I
16°L8 L 4 9L'¥ 6£°08 *1 9107 [dY [ 7€ S 1503 paua(
Ha0[q $5015)
[(IEIL )
18101, [apoos) 8,21e4950§ Jojudumo)  Asnoy-uj SmpnjIun}

ymawdojaAap Juaue))

(wonu U1 sy

$3355€ 3|qLInu)uy

r

99LS00DLATL6TTUGE8FL] INID
S10ZT YMER [ JE SE JUIWAIL]S [EIITENL 0] SIHON]
PANIT] Nearsg SN0 FUYsHqng SEYIA



Vikas Pnblishing House Privale Limited
Nodes (o finanelal statement as at 31 Mareh 2018
CIN; U74889DL1971PTC005766

5. Finaneial assets

5A. Investments

(Its, in million)

5B,

As al As at As af
3] Mareh 2018 31 March 2007 1 April 2016
a. Investments al cost
i. Investments in equity shares (Ungnoted)
Investments in snbsidiary
Nil (31 Mareh 2017: Wil aud 01 Aprl 2016: 130,000) shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid - . 14,20
up in M/s Arch Papier-Mache Private Limited *
- - 14.20
Tovestments In subsidiaries through its holding eompany
4,900 {31 March 2017: 4,900 and 01 April 2016; 4,900) shares of Rs. 10 each fully 70.00 70.00 70.00
paid up in M/s New Saraswali House (India) Private Limited
[00 {31 March 2017; 100 and 01 April 2016: 100) shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 0,00 0.00 0.00
in M/s Safari Digital Educalion Initiative Private Limited
70.00 70.00 70.00
Net invesiments 70.00 70,00 84,20
*Investment sold on 8 Deeember 2016 1o Indohind International Trade & Indusiries Privale Limiled.
Current - - -
Non-Curren{ 70.00 70.00 84.20
Trade reecivables .
(R, in_million)
As at Asg al As at

31 Mareh 2018 31 March 2017

1 Aprll 2016

Trade receivables . 1,167.86 998.57 871.80
Reeeivables fromn other related partics (refer note 31) 457.22 632.63 432.37
Total 1,625.08 1,631.20 1,304.17
Brenk-np for security detalls:
Unsecured, considered good 1,567.18 1,574.33 1,273.40
Doubtful 57.90 56.87 30.77
1,625.08 1,631.20 1,304,17
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and donbtful dehts)
Unsecured, considered good - - -
Doubtful (57.90) (56.87} (30.77)
Total 1,567.18 1,574.33 1,273.40
Tbe movemeni in impairment of (rade reecivables as lollosw:
As at As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 01 April 2016
Opening balance 56,87 30.77 -
Additions 12.14 26.10 30.77
Write off (net of reeovery} 11L.11 - -
Closing balance 5790 56.87 3077

No trade receivable are due fromn dircelors or other officers of the Company cither severally or jointly with any other person,
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5C. Loans

{Rs. in million)

As at
31 Mareh 2018

As at
31 March 2017

As at
1 April 2016

Securify deposits - Non Current

Security deposits - Current

Advanees recoverable in eash or kind (refer note (a) below)
Total

Current
Non-Current

Notc (a)
Advanccs recoverable lu cash or kind
Unsecured, considered good

Unsecured, considered doubiful

Less: Allowance for expected eredit loss

5D, Cash and cash equivalents

10.14 12,42 6.02
1.84 0.96 1.22
21.32 25.17 19.04
3330 38.55 26.28
23.16 26,13 20.26
10.14 12,42 6.02
21.32 25.17 19.04
- 0.69 0.69
21,32 25.86 19.73
- {0.69) (0.69)
21.32 25.17 19.04

(Rs, in million}

As ot As at As at
31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017 1 April 2016
Balances with banks
- In eurrenl accounts 90.76 111.37 94,68
Cash in hand 0.0 1.08 092
Cheques in hand 21.69 - -
Total 112,55 112.45 95.60
Current 112.58 112,45 95,60
Non-Current - - -
5E. Other financial nssets
(Rs. in million)
As at As at As at

31 Mareh 2018

31 Mareh 2017

1 April 2016

Margin money deposit (refer nofte a below)

- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months

- Deposits with remaining mafurify for less than 12 mon(hs
- Deposits with remaining maturity for more than 12 months
Total

Curreut
Non-Cnrrent

Note (a)

0.63 36,71 -
7.12 Q.55 -
3.06 4.02 22,84
10.81 41.28 22.84
735 37.26 -
3.06 4.02 22,84

i. Margin money deposil with a carmrying amount of Rs 5,94 million (31 March 2017: Rs 34.14 million 01 April 2016: 18,28 million} has been earmarked

for the repayment ol Buyer Credil taken from Indusind Bank,

ii. Margin money deposits with a ¢arrying amount of Rs 4.33 million (31 March 2017: Rs 4.20 million 0f April 2016: 4.18 million) are subjeet to first

charges to secure the company's bank guarantees.

iii. Margin money deposits with carrying amount of Rs 0,54 million (31 March 2017: Rs 0.38 million 01 April 2016: 0.38 million) is subject to

Repistration of UP VAT & DVAT.

iv. Margin money deposils with camying amount of Rs. Nil (31 Mareh 2017: Rs 2.56 milliou 61 April 2016: Nil) Ivas been earmarked agaiust the LC taken

from banks.

6. Inventories

{Rs, in million)

As at
31 Mareh 2018

As at
31 Mareh 2017

As at
1 Aprll 2016

Raw malerials

Raw matenals others
Printing material
Work iu progress
Finished goods

Less ; Provision for slow & non moving raw materals
Total Inventories

8.37 125.75 75.00
246 1.03 2.63
12.82 16.59 15.99
11.17 22.40 28.17
373.32 324.04 248.00
408.14 489,81 369,79
- (190} {1.90)
408.14 487.91 367.89

|
" Q;/QJ /
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Notes to financial s{aiement as at 31 March 2018
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7.

TA.

7B,

7C.

D.

Other assets

Capital advances

(Rs. in milllon)
As al As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 Apell 2016
Unsecured, considered good 245 0.61 323
Total 245 0.61 in
Prepaid expenses
(Rs. In million)
As al As at Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Prepaid expenses (Non current) 170 1.74 1.76
Prepaid expenses (Corrent) 4.61 3.95 4.04
Tatal 6.31 5.69 5.80
Qilier assets
{Rs. in million)
As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Ancillary cost of arranging, borrowings (Non current) - 0.36 0.70
Ancillary cosl of ammanging borrowings (Currenl) - 0.34 0.34
Talal - 0.70 1.04
Current 4,61 4.29 4,38
Non-Current 4.15 271 5.69
Income (ax assel (nef)
(&s, ln millign)
As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Advance income lax {nel of provision) 1.43 1.43 -
Tatal 143 1,43 -
Delerred taxes
(Rs. in million)
As at As at As al
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1LApCL2016
liems Yeading (o creation of deferred tax asscts
Impact of expenditure charged 1o the slatement of profit and loss account in the current 9.95 7.28 6.90
year but allowed for ax purposcs on payment basis in subsequent years
Provision for doubtful debt & advances 16.86 33,55 11,18
Others - - 1.02
Total deferred tax asscts 26.81 40.83 19.10
Items leading to creation of delerred Lax Habilitics
Fixed assets; inpact of differences between tax depreeialion and depreciation/ 2582 22.86 15.76
amortization charged in the finaneial slatements
Otlers - 12.76 -
Total deferred 1ax liabilities 25.82 35.62 15.76
Net deferred 1ax assels 0,99 521 3.34
.
/
/ - -




Vikns Publishiog House Private Limited
Notes to Onanciul stalement as af 31 March 2018
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9, Share Capital

=

(Rs, iu million)

Ag at Ag at Asat

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 Aprl1 2016
Autharised
65,000 (31 March 2017: 65,000; 01 April 2016: 65,000 } equity shares of Rs 100/~ each 6.50 6,50 6.50
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
40,140 (31 Marcl 2017: 40,140; 01 Aprl 2016 40,140) equity shares of Rs 100/~ cach 4.01 4,01 401

4,01 4.01 4.01

n. Reconciliation of (he equity shares out ling at the begi aad at the end of the reporilng year
Equity shares Numbhers Rs. in million
Issued, subscribed and fully pakd up
Asat L April2016 40,140 401
Increase/{Decrease) during the year - -
Asat 31 March 2017 40,140 401
[ucrcase/{Decrease) duriug the year - -
Asat3] March 2018 44,140 4.01

b, Terms/ riglis attached ta equlty shares

The Company has only oue class of equily shares having a par value of Rs. 100 per shiare. Eacli holder of cquily shares is enlitted to ooe vole per share, No dividead has becu proposed
by the Board of Directars during the year cuded 31 March 2018 (31 March 2047: nif 01 April 2016: Nil). In the eveut of liquidatioa ol the Company, (he holders of equity shares will be
eniitled lo receive remaiuing asscls of the Company, aller distribulion of ajl prefercutial amounts. The dislibution will be in proportiou lo the number of equity sbares held by the

sharcholders.

c. Sbares held by baldiag I and their subsldlurles

(Rs. in millton)

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
S Chand and Corapany Limiled {formerly S Chaud and Campany Private Liniled) 19 393 3.93
Nirja Publishers & Prinlers Private Limiled, Subsidiary of the Holding Company 0.08 0.08 c.08
il. Detalls of sharebalders holding mare thaa 5% equity shares in the Compauy: No. of sliares held % of holdiug
§ Chand and Company Limited, the Holding Company (formerly § Chand and Company Privale Limited)
Asat 1 April 2016 39,339 93%
Asal3l Marcb 2017 39,339 98%
As at M March 2018 39,339 98%
Otker Equity
{Rs. in million}
As at Asat

31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017
Relained earaing
Balance as the begiuuiug of reporiing year 1,097.78 927.63
Add: Surplus during Lhe year 241.44 i70.15
Bulance as (he end ol reporting year 1,333.22 1,097.78
Revaluation reserve
Balance as the beginniug of reporting year 51.21 5121
Increase/{Decrease) duriog the year . .
Balatice as the ead of reporting year 51,21 51,21
Geoeral reserve
Dalance as the beginniug of reporling year 4630 46.30
Inerease/(Decrease) during the year - -
Balaace as the cnd of reporting year 46,30 46,30
Deemed capilal contribution
Balaucg as he beginning of reportiag year 1,76 0,50
Inerease/{Decrease) during Lhe year 2.02 1.26
Balaoee as the ead of reporting year 178 1.76




Vikas Publisbing House Private Limlted
Notes (0 financial stalement as at 31 Marelh 2018
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11. Borrowlngs

11A, Non-current borrowings

(Rs. in milllon)
As at As at Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Term Loans
Indian rupee loan fron banks (seeurcd) (refer note "a' ,'b* and "' below) - 129.34 142,09
Indian rupee loan fromn finaneial instituliou (secured) {refer note (", 'g", 'li', Yi'and j' below) 2745 133.41 130,24
Indian rupec loan froin related party (Holding eompany - Unsecured) {refer note 'k’ below) 416.00 - -
Vehiete Loans
Indian rupee loan from banks (secured) (refer nole e’ below) 0.31 118 -
Indian rupee loan fiom fmaneial institulion (secured) {rcfer note ' below) 4,19 - -

Buyers Credit
Foreign eurreney loan fom bank (seeured) (reler note 'd’ below) -

- 61.68
Total Non-current borrowings 447.95 263,93 334401
Seeured 31,95 263.93 334,01

Unseeured 416.00

From bank ineludes ;-

a. The Indian rupee loan from Siale Bank of India earries interest al Base rale plus 2.35% p.a. It is repayable in 20 equal quarlerly installments; Quaterly Prineipal of Rs 8.5 million
each plus interest on monthly basis, slarling ffom April 2015. 1t is seeured by Pari Passu Charge on comunercial property situaled at E-28, Sector -8, Noida and Hypothecation of
furniture and fxtnres and Collateral of Leasehold industrial plol and building situated at 20/4, Sahibabad Site [V, Indusirial Area, Ghaziabad and Cominereial property in
bnsement Hoor bearing premises No, 16 , Old No, 1324, 18/3, dth Main, 4th Cross, Ward 27, Gandhinager , Bangatore and Plaut and Maclinery. The loan is also secured by
personal guaraniee of direetors and 8§ Chand and Company Limited (lormerly 8 Chand and Company Privale Linsiled). Company has repaid full loan amount during the linancinl
vear 2017-18.

b. The Indian rupees loau frow fuduslnd bank earries interest at one year MCLR plus 1.95% p.a. The loan is repayable in 18 cqual quarlerly slalments each afier inoratorium of six
inonths along with iuterest from the date of loan. The loan is secured by way of exelusive charge over the maelriuery purehased by the Comnpany [rom the proeecds of lerm loan.
Puriher, the loan has been guaranteed by the eorporatle guaranlee of S Chand aud Coinpany Limiled (formerly S Chand and Conpany Private Limiled). Company has repaid full
loan amount during the fiuaneial year 2017-18.

¢ The Indian rupees loan [rom Induslnd bank carries interest at one yeac MCLR plus 1,85% p.a, The loan (s repayable in 18 equal quarlerly iuslalments each afler moratoriwn of six
months along with iuteresi fiom the dale of loan. The loan is secured by way of exclusive charge over the maelinery purchased by the Conpany froin the proeeeds of lerin Yoan.

Further, the loan has been guaranleed by the corporale guaraniee ol S Chand and Company Limiled (formerly S Chand and Conpany Privale Limited), Company has repaid full
loan amoun! during the finaneial year 2017-18

d. Buyer's credit has been laken fromn Indusind bank for 3 differeut Iransactions, he waximum rate of inlerest being 10.22 % p.a and the buyer's eredil was 1epayable in the year
2017, the maxinuin dale [or redemnplion beiug L3(h July 2017 and it has been repaid wilh in lime, The inleres| rate includes the cost of iedgiug, (he buyer's ¢redit from Indusind
bank. The loay is seeured by way ol exclusive charge over the waeliuery purehased by the Company [ron the proceeds of buyer's credil. Further, the buyer's credil has becn
guaraiiteed by Uhic corporate guarantee 0f § Chand and Company Limited {formerly § Chand and Comnpany Privale Limited).

v. Company has taken vehicle loan from HDFC Bank Limited which earries inlerest at 5.50% p.a. 1t is repayable in 60 Monthly equaled monthly justahuents, sluring from May
2016, [L is seeured by hypothecalion of respeelive Yelicle.

Frow finsucial institulions ineludes -

I. Term loan from Indo Star Capital Finanee has been taken during the 2014-135 Gnaneial year, carries interest @12.85% lo 13,00% linked Lo the Kotak Bank Base Rate + 300 bps
swith Avuuval resel. The loan is repayable In 6 quarierly instalments beginning from Deceinber' 2014 onwards, On December 2015, Cownpany lad wade early repayment of loan
facility awounting lo Rs 150 million, The remaining loan amount is repayable in 7 quarterly inslalmenl begiuning from Seplember 2017 ouvards. The inslalment amount Is
ranging from Rs L.38 million to Rs 20,77 million per quarter. The loan was secured by pledge ol 4,900 equity shares held by the Conpany iu New saraswali House {India) Private
Limited. During the year ended 31 March 2017 the shares have beeu discharged and the Joan is now secured by pledge ol 39,239 Equily Shares ol the Company held by the § -

Chaud and Company Limiled (formerly known as S Cliand and Company Privale Limited) (e holding Comnpany}.Company has repaid full loan amoun! during (he fmancial year
2017-18,

g. Term loan [rolu Asis [inance tnken during the 2016-17 Financial earries interest @ 11.25% with an annual resel linked Lo the Axis Bank Base Rate, The loan is repayable in 14
quarierly iuslalmenls after moratoriwn of 18 months beginning from June' 2018 onwards. The loan is secured by pledge of 4,900 Equily Shares held by Lhe Company in New
Saraswali House (India) Privale Limited and corporate guarantee of § Chand and Company Limited. Company las repaid full loan amormut during the finaneial year 2017-18.

b. Company has laken three term loan from Sieweus Finauelal Serviees Privale Limiled for purcbase of wiachines during the year, wineh camies fulerest @ 11.50% p.a, It is
repayable in 36 Monthly eqnaled mouthly instalinents. It is secured by hypothecation ol respeciive maeline and Corporale Guarantee of'S Chand and Company Limited { formerly
S Chand and Conpany Private Litnited).

L Company has lakeu veliele loan Itoiv Daimler Financial Services Private Limiled which carres inferest al 9% p.a. 1t is repayable in 36 Mouthly Instalnents, stading frowmn
September 2017, It is secured by hypothecalion ol respeclive Yehicle.

j»  Cowmpany has lakeu three term loans froin Siemeus Financial Serviees Private Litniled for purehase of maehines, whieh carries inlerest rangiug between 11.5% 1o 13% p.a. Il is
repayable in 33 10 36 Mouthly equated monthly justalments. It is secured by hypolliccation of respective wnaehine and Corporate Guarantee of S Chand and Company Limiled
{formerly S Chand and Cowpany Privale Limiled). Comnpany has inade inlerest free refundable security deposits of Rs 2,73 million 1o lender, included in non eurrent seeurity
deposit in Nole 5C.

Trom relaled party ineludes :«
k. Company has laken a oplional eouvertible loan of amounling Rs, 46,60 crores ffom 8 Chand and Conpany limited during the year, earries interest @ |1.25%.. Term of loan is 3
years. Loan can be couverlible al the option of borrower aller 1 year and il not eonverled on or before 3 years the loan shall be repaid on the eoinpletion of 3 years. Company has

repaid Rs, 50 million during the year.
b/%\)//
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118, Current borrowings

12

(Rs. in million)
As at As at As at

M March 2018 3 March 2017 1 April 2016

Current matnrity of long term borrowings

Term Loans

Indian rupee loan from bauks (sccured) - 62.75 54.19
Indian rupee loan from financial institution (secured) 29.66 19.69 240
Tndian rupee loan from hinancial institution (Unsecnred) - 42.92 -
Vehicle Loan

Indian rupee loan from financial institution {secured) 0.52 - -
Indian rupee toan from bank (secured) 0.85 0.30 0.19
Buyers Credit

Foreign currency loan ifom bank {secured) - 61.68 -
Total Current maturity of Indian eurreney loan 31.03 187,34 56.78
Buyers Credlt (refer note "e" and "d" below)

Foreign currency loan from bank (seeured) 39.69 - 11.10
Cash Credit {refer note "n" below)

Indian mpee loan from bank (secured) 199.61 24185 296.85
Indian rupee loan from bank {(unsecured) - - 7.00
Working Capltal Demand loan (refer note "b" below)

Indian rupee loan from bank (securcd) 240.00 270.00 150.00
Totn] current borrowings 510,33 699.19 521.73
Less: Amount presented under "other financial liabilities" (31.03) {187.34) {56.78)
Net current borrowings 47930 511.85 464.95
Seenred 479.30 511.85 457.95
Unseenred - - 700

The company has taken the cash credil facility from HDFC Bank, IndusInd Bank, DBS bank and Standard Charlered Bank carries interest at MCLR plns
spread (ranging from 1.30% to 2.15 %) p.a whieh are repayable on demand. Cash credit Faeility availed 1o the extent of sanction limit, is seeured by first
pari passu charge (by hypothecation) on entire existing and fulure current assets and movable fixed assets (excluding specifically charged to other
lenders} and corporale guarantee of § Chand and Company Limiled (fonnerly § Chand and Company Privatc Limited) and and has been considered as
secured. Cash eredit availed over and above |he sanction limit has been considered as unsecured and carries same interest rate as secured facility and is
reoavable on demand.

Working capilal demand loan from HDFC Bank, DBS Bank and Standard Chartered Bank carries intercst ranging from 8.75% to 9.75% p.a. which are
repayable on maturity. Working capital demand loan is facility is the sub limit of cash credit faeilily and secured by secured by the same security as
provided in cash credit facility mentioned in point no. a above,

Buyers credit from Indusind Bank carries interest ranging between 2.37% to 2.93% p.a. and facility is sccured by first pari passu charge (by
hypothceation) on entire existing and fulure current asscls and movable fixed assets (excluding specifically charged to other lenders) and corporate
puarantee of § Chand and Company Limited (formerly § Chand and Company Privale Limited)

Buyers credit from IndusInd bank carries inferest at 1.72 % p.a facility is secured by firs! pari passu charge (by liypothecation) on entire existing and
future currcut assets and movable fixed assets (excluding specifically charged 1o other lenders) and corporate guarantee of § Chand and Company
Limited (formerly S Chand and Company Private Limited) This loau has been repaid in full during the year.

Trade payables
(Rs. in million)

Asat As al As at
31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017 1 Aprll 2016

Non-Current

Trade payables other than micro enterprises and small enterprises . - 0.62
Current

Trade payables of micro enlerprises and small enferprises (refer note 33} - - -
Trade payables other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 493,19 862,06 666.87
Total 493.19 862,06 667.49
Current 493,19 862.06 666.87
Non-Current - - 0.62

{
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13, Other finaneial liabflities

{Rs. in million)

As at
31 March 2018

Asat
31 March 2017

As at
1 April 2016

Current maturity of long tenn borrowings (refer niole 11B above) 3103 187.34 56.78
Interest acerued but not due on borrowings 4223 8.39 3.58
Total 73.26 195,73 65.36
Currend 73.26 195.73 65.36
Non currcnt - - -
14, Provisions
(Rs. in million}
As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017 1 April 2016
Provision for gratuity 3417 19.62 19.40
Provision for income tax {net of advance tax) 72.15 64.75 29.54
Total 106.32 84.37 48.94
Current 72,15 64.75 29.54
Non current 34.17 19.62 19.40
15, Othcr liabilities
(Rs, in million}
As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Other payables:
Statutory dues 23.07 1391 14.01
Capital creditors - 5.14 9.58
Advance from custoiners 0.31 21.50 13.62
Total 32.38 40.55 37.21
Currcut 32.38 40.55 37.21
Non current 2 - - -
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Notcs to financial statement as at 31 March 2018
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16.

17.

171

17.2

Revenuc from operations
(Rs. in million)
Tor the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Sale of prodnets
Finished goods (Publishing and Printing) 1,890.27 2,557.30
Less: Tuwnover discount (278.03) (169.31)
1,612.24 2,387.99
Sale of scrviees 361.35 5.25
Other operating revenue
Sale of paper 37.00 -
Scrap sales 34.52 7.81
Total 2,045.11 2,401.05
Detail of sale of services
Job work 360.15 -
Content development charges - 371
Royalty income 1.20 1.54
361.35 5.25
Other incomes
(Rs. in million)

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Finance income

[uterest income ou bank deposit

Interest on tax refund

Unwind of discount on security deposit paid
Total finance ineome (A)

Other income

Foreign exchange differences (net)
Miscellaneous ineome

Amounl written back

Profil on sales of investent
Total other income (B)

Grand total (A+B)

111 2.38
.14 -
0.16 025
2.41 2.63
- 1.51
0.44 0.16
- 022
- 32.60
0.43 34.49
2.85 3712
e
I 4
)
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18. Cost of raw material consnmed

(Rs, in milllon}

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Inventories at the beginning of the year » 12575 75.00
Add : Pnrchases during (he year 351.26 950.71

471.01 1,025.711
Less : Invenlory written off . (1.90) -
Less ; cost of sales of paper (31.25) -
Less : Inventories at the end of the year (reler note 6) {8.37) (125.75)

435.49 899.96
Details of raw material purehased
Paper 351.26 950.71

351.26 950.71

15. Cost of printing material consumed

(Rs. in million)

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 Mnrch 2018 31 Mareh 2017
Inventories at the begining of the year 16.59 15.99
Add : Purchases during the year 123.09 109.68
139,68 125.67
Less : Inventories at the end of the year (refer nole 6) (12.82) {16.59)
126.836 109.08
Detnils of printing material purchased
Printing and binding material 123.09 109.68
123.09 109.68

20. (Inerease)}Dccerease in inventories of finished goods and work in progress

{Rs. in million)

For the year ended

For the yenr ended

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods (refer nole 6) 37332 324.04
Work in progress (refer note 6) 11.17 22,40
384.49 346.44
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 324.04 248.00
Work in progress 22.40 28.17
346.44 276.17
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods and work in progress (38.05) {710.27)
Details of Inventories
(Rs. in million}
For the year cuded For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017
Work in Progress
Printed material for books 1117 22.40
1117 22.40
Finished goods
- Manufactured goods
Books 355.86 306.54
Traded goods
Books 17.46 17.50
313.32 324.04
Raw material
Paper 8.37 125.75
Printing malerial 12.82 16,59
Others i 246 1.03
7 23.65 143,37
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Notes to {inancial statement as at 31 March 2018
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21.

22,

23,

24.

25,

Publication expenses

{Rs. in million)

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017
Printing and binding chaiges 172.57 21222
Royalty expenses 51.62 40.42
Other publishing expenses 23.70 25.86
Power & fuel 48.84 48.60
Repairs and maintenance - machinery 36.32 27.91
Total 333.05 415.01
Employee benefits cxpenses
(Rs, in million}
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Salaries, wages and bonus

Employee stoek option expense
Coniribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expense (refer note 29)

Staff welfare cxpenses

Total

Seclling and distribution expenses

298.66 261.96
2,02 1.26
1712 14.46
9.10 7.14
13.32 10.64
34022 295.46

(Rs. in million)

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2017

Advertiseinent and sales promotion 25.62 20.46
Meeting & conferenee expenses 1167 7.54
Travelling and conveyance 58.04 51.51
Freight and forwarding charges 52.01 54.31
Packing cxpenses 30.20 31.25
Book workshop expenses 12.04 10.01
Total 189.58 17508
Finanee cost
_{(Rs. in million}
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Interest 118.64 125.83
Bank charges 321 4.99
Amortization of ancillary burrowing cost 0.70 0.34
Total 122.55 131,16

Depreeiation and amortisalion expenses

(Rs. in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017
Depreciation of property, plant & equipment (refer note 3) 29.80 74.28
Aumortisation of inlangible assets (refer note 4) 20.08 17.80
Total 49.88 92.08
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Notes to finaneial staternent as at 31 March 2018
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26, Otber Expenses

{Rs. in million)

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Commnunication cost
Rent (refer note 30)
Rates and taxes
Insuranee
Repairs and inaintenance -
-Buildings
-Others
Prinling and stationery
Lepal and professional lee
Payment 1o auditor (refer details below)
Security expenses
Forcign exchange differeuce (netl)
Corporale social responsibility expenses (refer note 40)
Director silling fee
Recruitmenl charges
Bad advances/amounlt writien off
Provision for bad & doubtful debls
Loss on sale of properly, planl and equipment (net}
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

Payment to auditor

6.56 8.73
26.61 3149
0.80 1.02
9.03 7.18
1.12 0.87
3183 24.26
3.85 3.97
15.68 14.09
1.96 2.07
7.01 6.79
0.13 -
4.26 6.88
0.32 0.09
- 0.18
1.97 0.81
12.14 26.10
0.26 0.85
0.39 0.40
123.92 136.38

For tbe year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
As auditor
Audit lee 1.80 2.07
Qut of pockel expenses 0.16 -
1.96 207
27. Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
The disaggrepation of changes in other comprehensive income by each ype of equity is shown below:
During (he year ended 31st March 2018
Retained earnings Total
Re-ncasurement gainsf(losses) on defined benefit plans (6.65) (6.65)
Tax impael on re-measureinent gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 1.94 1.94
4.711) (4.71)
During the year cnded 31st March 2017
Retained earnings Total
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benelil plans 536 536
Tax itnpaet on re-neasurement gaing/(losses) on defined benelit plans (1,91} (1.91)
345 345

28. Eamnings per share

Basic EPS amnounts are calculated by dividing (he profil for {he year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity

shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounis are ealeulaled by dividing the profit for the year atribntable o cqnity holders by the weighted average number of cquity
shares outslanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issucd on conversion of all dilutive

potential equity shares into equity shares,

The following refleets the incone and share data nsed in the basic and diluted EPS computalions

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Profit altiributable to equity hotders of the company (Rs in million)

Weighted average number ol equity shares used for computing earning per share
{Basic & Diluted)

Basie EPS (Amount in Rs.)
Diluted EPS (Amount in Rs,)

246.15

40,140

, 6,132
¢ 6,132

166,70

40,140

4,153
4,153
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19. Gratuity and other post- employment henefits plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Under the gratuity plan, every cmployee who has completed atleast five ycars of service gets a gratuity on
departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each compleled year of service or part thereof in excess of six inonths subject to a maximum of Rs, 2 million. The

seheme is funded wilh an insurance company in the formn of qualifying insurance policy.

The following lables summarize Lhe components of net benefit expense recognised in the profit and loss account and amownts recognized in the balance sheet for

Gratuity Plan.

Statement of Profil & Loss account

Net einployee henellt expense recopnised in employee cosl: (Rs. in million}
Yor the year cnded  For the year ended
31 Macch, 2018 31 Mareh, 2017
Curvent serviec cost 4.9 5.8
Past service cost 27 -
Interest cost on defmed obligation 1.65 1.59
Expected retuns on plan assels (0.23} (0.27)
9.10 7.14

Amount yecognised in Other Comprehensive Income:

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Actuarial {gains} / losses on obligation 6.6 (5.39)
Actuarial pains / (losscs) on assels 0.00 {0.03)
6,65 {5.36)

Balance sheel
Changes in the present value of Lhe defined benelit obligation are as Follows:

For the year ended

Far the year ended

31 March, 2018 31 Mareh, 2017

Opening defined benefit obligation 22,70 21,56
Current service eost 4,97 582
Past service cost 271 -
Interest cost 1.65 1.59
Benefits paid from plan assels (0.58) (2.88)
Benefits paid directly by employer {1.08) -
Actuarial (gains) / losscs on obligation 6.65 {339
Closing defined benelit obligation 37.02 22.70
Current Portion - -
Nona « Cnrrent Portion 34.17 19,62

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

For the year ended
31 March, 2018

For the year ended
31 March, 2017

Opcning fair value of plan assels .08 4.15
Expected return 0.23 0.27
Conlribuations by employer 012 1,56
Bencfits paid {0.58) (2.88)
Actuarial gain/(loss) 0.00 (0.03)
Closing lalr valne of plane assels 2.85 3.08

The Company expects to eontribute Rs, 0.54 million to gratuity in (his year (31 March 2017 Rs 0,55 miltion).

The major categories of plan assets as a perceniage of the fair value of total plan assets are as folloyws:

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 Mareh, 2018 31 Mareh, 2017
Investments with insurer 100% 100%
{This space hus been hitentionally lefi blank)
-
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The economic and demographic assnmptions nsed in determining gratuity obligations for the company’s plans are shown betow:
: For the year ended For the year ended

31 Mavch, 2018 31 Mareh, 2017

Discount rate 7.70% 7.35%
Expected rate of return on assels 7.70% 8.00%
Expected rate of salary incrense 10% 8%
Retireanent Age {In years) 60 years 60 years
Employee turmover :- .

- Ape uplo 30 years : 3.00% 3.00%

- Age 31 - 44 years: 2.00% 2.00%

- Age above 44 years : 1.00% 1.00%
Mortality Rate LIC (1994-96) LIC (1994-96)

Ultimale Ultinate

The eslimales of future salary increases, eonsidered in actuarial valnatiou, lake aceounl of inflation, seniority, promolion and other relevant factors, such as supply
and demand in the employment inarket.

The overall expeeted rate of return on assels is determined based on lhic market priees prevailing on that date, applicable (o the period over which the obligation is
to be scttled.

The impael of sensitivity analysis duc (0 chaoges in the signifleant actuarial assu on the defined benefit obligations is given in below table:

Change In For the year ended Tor the year endeil

assumptions 31 March, 2018 31 March. 2017

Disconnt rate + 1% (32.00) (19.81)
- 1% 43.14 26.20
Expecied rale of salary inerease +1% 42,62 25,78
- 1% (32.22) (19.95)

The scnsitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes
in key assumptions ocenrring at the end of the reporting period.

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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30. Lenses

3.

—_

Operating lease: company as lessce

The Company has laken premises for ollice and storage use under eaneellable and non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The lolal lease rentals recognized as an expense
during the year under the above lease ngreements aggregates to Rs 26,61 willion (Mareh 31, 2017; Rs 31,49 million). There are no restriclions itposed by (he lease agreements.

Purther minimun rental payable under non-cancellable ogerating lease are as [ollows : (Rs. in million)
M1 March 31 Nareh 01 April
i 2018 2087 2016
Within oue year - 1224 17.72
Afler one year bul not more thau five years - - 12.24

After five years N

Related party diselosure

Names nf related parties pod relnted party relntonship
Related pariles where enntrol exists

Holding Company - S Chand and Company Limited (Formerly § Chaod and Compauy Privale Liariled)
Related parties with whom transactinns have taken place duriug the vear

Subsidiary company Arch Papier-Maclie Private Limnited {lill 08 Decearber 2016)

Fellow subsidiardes Blackie & Son (Calculta) Prvate Limited

New Samswati House (India) Privaie Limited

BPI { Tndia) Private Limiled

Nirja Puhlishers & Prinlers Privale Limited

Safari Digilal Edncatiou Initiutives Private Limited
D. S, Digilal Privale Limiled

S Chaud Edutech Private Limited

Eurasia Publishing Privale Limiled

Chhaya Prakashini Privule Limited

Eulerprise over which KMP or their Hotel Tourist
relatives cxercise significant influenee SC Hotel Tourist Deluze Privale Limited
Key Manageinent Personuel Mr. Himaushu Gupla , Direclor

Mr, Dinesh Kumar Thunjlmuowala , Direclor
Mr. Gauray Kunmar Jhynjhnowala |, Direetor
Mrs. Savila Gupta, Director
Mr. Deep Mishra, Direclor

(This space has been intentionatly left blank)
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3L.h. Relaled party transactlons

The foliowing table provides the total ameuni of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relovani financiat year: Rs. in milllon
Enterprises owned or
Holding Fellow signficantly influenced Key Managerial
Perlod/Year Ended . Dy key nisnagement Toial
Company Snhstdiaries Personnel
personnel or ihely
relatlves
Sale of Goods {publishing and Printing) Services
8 Chiand and Coznparty Limited 31 March 2018 487,13 - - - 487.13
31 March 2017 825.55 - - - 825.55
New Saraswali Houst India Privete Limiled 31 March 2018 - 147.85 - - 147.85
31 March 2017 - 390.65 - - 390.65
BPI {India} Privale Limiled 31 March 2018 - 6.31 - - 6.31
31 March 2017 - - - - -
D. S, Digital Privale Limited 31 Merch 2018 - - - - -
34 Mach 2017 - ¢.13 - - 0.13
Safari Digital Educalion [nilialive Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 25.81 - - 25.81
31 March 2017 - 20,77 - - 20.77
Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 4.70 - - 4.70
31 March 2017 - 20.02 - - 20,02
Chhaya Prakashin{ Pvt. Ltd., 31 March 2018 - 1.50 - - 1.50
31 March 2687 - 8.3% - - 8.39
Sale of paper - - - -
S Chand and Company Litmiled 31 March 2018 10.82 - - - 10.82
3§ March 2017 - - - - -
New Saraswati Honse India Privale Limiled 3] March 2018 - 5.54 - - 5.59
3] March 2017 - - - - -
Chhaya Prakashioi Pvi. L(d., 31 March 2018 - ¢.38 - - 0.38
31 Mach 2017 - - - - -
Nigja Publishers & Prinlers Privale Limited 31 March 2018 - 2026 - - 20.26
31 March 20617 - - - - -
Remuneration paid - . - - - -
Himansbu Gupla 31 Merch 2018 - - - - -
31 Mnrch 2017 - - - 0.40 0.40
Dinesh Kwnar Jhunjhnuwala 31 March 2018 - ~ - - -
31 March 2017 - - - 040 040
Gaurav Kumar Jhunjhouwala 31 March 2018 - - - 6.60 6.60
31 Mach 2017 - - - 500 500
Savita Gupta 31 March 2018 - - - 6.42 642
31 March 2017 - - - 5.35 5.35
Expenses ineurred by the pelated party on behall of the
Company - - - -
Reimbursement of Expenses 31 Merch 2018 0.21 - - - 0.21
31 March 2017 1.34 . - - 1.34
Expenses lncurred by the company en behalf of the -
related party - - - -
Reimbursement of Expenses 31 March 2018 0.05 - - - 0.05
31 March 2017 - - - - -
Purchase of Capltal Goods - - - - -
S Chand and Company Limiled 31 March 218 12.15 - - - 12.15
31 March 2047 - - - - -
Sale of Capital Goods/ Services - - - - -
MNew Sarasiwati Honse lodia Private Limited 31 March 2018 - - - - -
31 Mnrch 2017 - 3.00 - - 1.00
Nitja Publishers & Prinlers Privale Limited 31 March 2018 - 310 - - 310
31 March 2017 - 500 - - 6.0%
[Royalty pald - B - -
$ Chand and Company Limited 31 March 2018 0.09 - - - 009
31 Mach 2017 - - - - -
BFI (India} Private Limiled 31 March 2018 - 0.89 - - 089
31 March 207 - - - - -
Purchase of Services - . - -
8 Chand and Company Limiled 31 March 2018 159 - - - 159
31 March 2017 136 - - - 3.36
Hotel Tonrist 31 March 2018 - - 0.06 - 0,06
31 March 2017 - - - - -
Nitja Publishers & Printers Private Limiled 31 March 2018 - 0.16 - - 0.16
31 Mach 2017 - - - - -
BPI (Isdia} Privale Limited 3l March 2018 - - - - -
31 March 2017 - 0.14 - - 014
Safari Digital Education Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 7.4 - - 7.04
31 March 2017 - 6.90 - - 6.90
Employce stack option expense
S Chand and Company Limited 3] Marh 2018 202 - - - 2.02
31 March 2017 1.26 - - - 1.26
Renf paid -
S Chand ané Company Limited 31 March 2018 0.4¢ - - - 0.40
31 Mawch 2017 L75 - - - 175
Interest expense - - - -
§ Chand and Company Limited 31 March 2018 1279 - - e - 4279
31 Mach 2017 - - - - -
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Qutstanding Balances as at the year end: {Rs, in milllon}
Enderprises owned or
signilcantly influenced
PerlodiYear Ended Holdlng Fellor by key managentent Key Blanagerial Tolal
Company Subsidlarles Personnel
personnel or their
relatlyes
Trade Recetvables !
S Chand aud Company Limited 31 March 2018 198.88 - - - 198.88
31 March 2017 300.22 - - - 300.22
| April 2016 242.52 - - - 24252
New Sarasivati Tlouse India Privale Limiled 31 March 2018 - 158.68 - - 158.68
31 March 2017 - 275.40 - - 27540
1 April 2016 - 154.75 - - 154.75
BPI (India} Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 3642 - - 16.42
3| March 2017 - 27.51 - - 2751
1 April 2016 - 31.34 - - 3134
Wirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 2228 - - 22.28
31 March 2017 - - - - -
1 April 2016 - 251 - - 251
1 April 2016 - - 0.03 - 0,03
Safari Digilal Edneation Initialive Privale Limited 31 March 2018 - 40.24 - - 40.24
31 March 2017 - 20.64 - - 20.64
1 Apnil 2016 - 1.25 - - 1.25
Chhaya Prakashini Pvt. Lid., 31 March 2018 - 0.71 - - 0.71
31 March 2017 - 8.36 - - 8.86
! Aprl 2016 - - - - -
Financisl guarantee
S Clmnd and Company Limiled 31 March 2018 479.30 - - - 479.30
31 Morch 2017 891.62 - - - 891,62
1 April 2016 72250 - - - 7229
‘T'rade Payables - - - -
Blackie & Son (Calculta) Private Limiied 31 March 2018 - - - - B
) 31 March 2017 - - - - -
1 April 2016 - 326 - - 326
Eurasia Publishing Private Limited 31 March 2018 - - - - -
31 March 2017 - - - - -
| April 2016 - 4.66 - - 4.66
SC Holel Tourist Defuxe Private Limited 31 March 2018 - - - - -
31 March 2017 - - - . -
I April 2016 - - 0.01 - 001
Nigja Publishers & Printers Privale Liited 31 March 2018 - - - - -
31 March 2017 - 0.47 - - 0.47
| April 2016 - - - - -
D. 8. Digital Privale Limited 3] March 2018 . t . - - -
31 March 2017 - 2.58 - - 258
1 April 2016 - 9.21 - - 9.21
Lesn received and payment {kereof - - - -
8 Chand and Company Limiled - - - - -
Loan taken 31 March 2018 466.00 - - - 466.00
: 31 March 2017 - - - . - -
1 April 2016 - - - - -
Loan repayment 31 March 2018 50.00 - - - 50.00
3§ March 2017 ~ - - - -
1 April 2016 - - - - -
Interest payable - - - - -
S Chand and Company Limiled 31 March 2018 31851 - - - 3851
31 March 2017 - - - - -
t April 2016 - - - - -
.//I“
A . -
s a -
S e
e
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Capltal & elber commlinunis

{5, In million}
3I Murch 2018 31 March 2017 01 Aprll 2016

Relaling 1o the purchases of machinery and office equipinent {nel of advances) - - 1.55
Relaling lo Exporl Prenolien Capilal Goods comnmument. 71.89 71.89 .39
Detalls of dues (o mlcro, snall And nicdlum eoterprises as defioed ooder the MSMED Acl, 1006

(Rs. In mililon)
A March 2018 31 March 2087 1 Apri1 2016

The principat awounl and the inlerest dite thereon (lo be shown separalely) ramaining unpaid (o any supplicr as al the end of
€ach accounling year

- Principal amounit die lo micrp and small enterprises

- Inierest cue on above

The amount of inlerest paid by the buyer in lerms of sedion 16 of lhe MSMED Aci 2006 along with the amounis of (he - -
payment made |2 the supplier beyond Lhe appointed day during each accounling year.

The amounl of interest duc and payable for lhe paiod of delay in making paynrenl (which have been paid bol heyord the - -
appoinled day during Ihe year) but withoul adding ke inferest specified under e MSMED Act 2006,

The amound of furller inlerest rermaining die and payalile craa in ihe succealing years, unfil such dale when (e inlerest dues
as above are actually paid lo the small enterprise fer the purpose nf disallowance as 3 dedoclible expanxditure onder scction

23 of the MSWMED Acl 2006
Unhedged forelge correney exposure
The amount of foreign currey exposore thal are noi hedged by derivative instrument or olherwite as on 31 harch 2018, 31 March 2007 and § April 2016 are as under:
Forclen cocreney Amtonn In forelga correnty Amoont fn Rs {mifllog]
® 7 31 March, 248 31 March, 3017 91 April, 2016 31 Murch, 2048* 11 March, 2007** 0] April, 2016*4*
Trade receivable usp 1,310 1,310 16,920 0.09 0.08 1,12
BHD - - 23,400 - - 4.08
Trade payahle GBP - - 205,264 B - 19.54
Baoyer credit (bomowings) GBF - - 116,313 - - 11.10
usp 610,113 - - 39.69 - -
*Exchange Rate for 3] March 2018, 1 USD = Rs.65.05,
*SExchange Rale for 3 March 2017, | USD = Rs,64.75,
++1Exchange Rale for 31 March 20146, L USD = Rs. 66.14, 1 GBF = Rs.95.20, [ BHD=Rs. 17423
Expendilure lo foreign currency (occrua] basiy)
(Amount ln mililon)
3§ March, 2018 31 Muorch, 2017
Travelling and conveyance 067 111
Publishing expases 0.26 0.53
Purchae of raw malerial {paper) 3890 1261
Repair & inainlenance - maclinery . 533 596
Meeting & conferaxe . 27 107
Interest on boyer aedil 0.21 0.19
: 48.13 21.47
Vihie of imperied Gonds oo C1F Basls

(Rs. lo mitllon)
3 Moreh, 2018 31 March, 2017

Property, planl and eqoipment

- 7.1
- AT
Earelngs o forelgn corrency (necrunl hosls)
. In milllon
31 Morch, 2018 31 March, 2017
Exporis {F.O.R. vale) - 030
Service income - 0.40
- 0,70
Impor{ed aed bndlgennns rew materials consomesd
R materdals Pereentape {6} Amooot lo Bs (milllon
31 Mareh, 201§ 31 Morch, 2017 A1 March, 2018 A1 Morel, 1617
Imported 6.52% 1.25% 1390 12.61
Iidiganous 93.08% 98.75% 52145 99542
Conlingenl linhilitkes

The company does not have any epntingenl liabilily as a1 31st hlarch 20)8 (315t March 2017: Nil, 1st April 2018: Nil)

Carperate Soelol Respoasihility (CSR)

The Company has contribuled Rs 4.26 million (31 dMarch 2017: Rs 638 million) in acxordance with seclion 135 read with schedole V11 1o the Comparmics Acl, 2013 (o a society tovolved in pronoling education.
including special education and employmenl enhancemen! and vocalional skill specially 2mong children and sudents.

Tofoermatlon shom mnjnr cuslower /

Revanue rom one major customer acceunted for anonnting (o Rs 497,94 million pggregaling lo 24% ol‘tolai re%rgmc (hwo major cuslomérs amounting 1o Rg-1 216.20 miliion aggregaling to 5§% of tofal revenue
for the year ended 31 March, 2017), Z s
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43, Financial Insirnments:- Financlal risk management objectives and policies

a

The Coampany’s principal financial linbifitics, eomprise Joans and borrowings, trade and other payables . The nain purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
Company’s operations, The Company’s principal financial assels inchude investments in equity shares and govenunent seeurities, advances to related party, trade and
other reccivables, security deposits, cash and short-term deposits that derive directly fromn its operations,

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s semior management oversees the management of these risks and advises on
financial risks and the appropnate financial risk goveruance framewaork for the Company. The board provides assurance lo the shareholders that the Company’s
financial risk aetivilies are povemed by appropriale polieies and procedures and that financial risks are identificd, measured and managed in aceordance will the
Comnpany's policies aud risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing eachi of these risks, which are suunmarised below.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk (hat the fair value of future cash flows of a fiuancial instrument will fluctuale because of changes in market prices.

Markel fisk comprises three types of fisk:-

a.) Inlerest rale risk,

b.) currency risk and other pricc risk, such as equily price risk and

.} commodity risk.

Finaneial insinnee nts affeeted by market dsk inelude loans and borrowings, investments, deposits, advances and derivalive Anancial instnuments.

The seusitivily analyses in the following sections relate to 1he posilion as at 3} March 2018 and 31 March 2017,

The sensitivity analyscs have been prepared on Uic basis that the amowni of net debt, the ratio of floating 1o fixed interest ralcs of the debt and derivalives and the
proportion of financial imstnments in foreign correncies are all conslant in place al 31 March 2018,

The analyscs exclude the itnpact of movements in market variables on: the camying values of gratuity and otlicr post-retireinent obligalions provisions. The scositivily
of the relevan! profit or foss item is the effect of the assumed chanees in resnective inarkel dsks.

lunterest rate risk.
Interest rate risk is the dsk that the fair value or futwre cash fows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market terest rates, The Cowpany’s
exposurc (o Lhe risk of changes in tacket imerest mtes relates primarily to the Company's long-lemm debt obligations will fixed inlerest rates.

The following table demonstraics the sensitivity to a rcasonably possible change in interest rates. With all otlicr variables Leld constant, the Company’s prolit before
Lax is affected Liwough the impact on Aoaling rate borrowings, as follows:

(Rs, in million}
Increase/decrease  Effcel on profit Eflect on
in basts points hefore tax eqnity (QCIY
As at 31 March, 2018
Bomowings H0.5% {4.79) -
-0,5% 4,99 -
As nt 31 March, 2017
Borrowings +).5% (4.82) -
-0.5% 4,82 -
As at 01 Aprit, 2016
Borowings +0,5% (4.28) -
-0.5% 4.28 -

Forelgn curreney risk

Forcign cumency risk is the risk (hat the fair value or fiture cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign cxchange rales. The Company’s
cxposure to the tsk of changes in foreign ¢xcheange rates relates pimarily to the Company’s operating activilics {when revenue or expense is denominated tn a foreign
CLITENCY).

The company does not hedge its foreign eurrency cxposure, however the sensitivity analysis is given as below for the for (he curreneics, in which Company has
foreign exposure:

(Rs, In million)
Changes ia forcign Eilect on profit Effect on
currency rales before tax egqnlly {OCD)
For the ycar ended 31 March, 2018
USD +5% (1.95) -
5% 1.98 -
For the yenr ended 31 March, 2017
USD +5% e 0.00 -
-5% L s (0.00) -
//”’
/
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44,

Credit Risk
Credit risk s the rsk thal counlerparly will not meet ils obligations nader a financial instniment or costomer ronlract, leading (o o financial foss. The Cempany is nol exposed 1o any
sipnificant credid risk frow its operaling activities (primarily trade receivables), including deposits with banks and financial instilutions, foreign exchenge lions and other fi ial
instruments.

The Ageing analysis of lrade receivables (net) as of the reporting date is as follows:

{Rs. In mlflion
Age Bratkel Net Dne | 0-215 Days [ 216-365Days | 365730 Days | More than 730 Days | Tolal
Asat 1 April 2016 1,149.70 4782 72.15 A7 - 1,272.40
As al 31 March 2017 1,502.71 21.69 22,42 27.5 - 1,574.33
As al 31 March 2018 1,410.12 88,9% ga3 - 2974 1,567,18

. Llquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is e risk thal the Company will cncoanter difTicully in meeting the obligations associated with i1s financial liabilities that are setiled by delivering cash or another financial
assel. The Company's objeclive is to mainlain a balance between continuity of funding end [exibility throngh the nse of benk overdralls, and bank loans. The Company's approach to
managing lignidily 1o ensure , as far as possible, thal it will have snificient liquidity to mect its liability wien they me due, under both normal and sivessed conditions, withont ingumng
unacceplable losses or risking damage to the Company's repolation. The Company closely mopilors its liguidily position and deploys a robust casl management sysiem. The Company
manages kignidity sk by maintaining adeqnale reserves, borrowing linbilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, profile of financial assels and liabilities, It maintain
adequate sources of fMnancing iuelnding leans from banks ot an optimised vost, The table below provides the delails regarding conlractual maturities of fiencial liabilities.

Asal As at Asal
I March. 2008 3% Macch, 2007 01 Aprlh 2016

On Demand
- Borrowings 199.61 24).83 303.85

199,61 241.85 303.85
Less thin | year
- Borowings 279.69 270.00 161.10
- Trade payables 493.19 86206 66687
- Other finaneial liabililies 73.26 195.73 6536

846.14 1321,79 89113
More than 1 year
- Borrowings 447.95 26393 33401
- Trade payables - - .62

447.95 256393 14,63

Capital management

For the purpose of tie Company’s capilal managemenl, capilal incindes issucd equity capital and all olher equity reserves atiribntable 1o the equity holders of the cornpany. The primary
objective of (he Company's capilal managemen jg Lo maximisc the shareholder valne.

The Company sceks 1o mainlain 4 balance betweeo the higher retums that might be possible witls kipher levels of borrowings and the advantages and scenrity nfforded by a sound capital
posilion. The primary objeetive of Lhe company's capital management is o iaxiinise the shnieholder valne,

Tlie Company monilors capilal using a gearing ratio, whicl is nét debi divided by tosal capital plus net debl. The Company’s policy is to keep the gearing ratic hetween 30% to 50%. The
Company measures underlying net dehl as (otal liabilitics, comprising intercst bearing loans and bomowings, excluding eny dues lo subsidiaries or group companies less eash and cash

equivalents. For the purpose of capital management, (olal capital includes issned equity equity capital, share premimin and all other reserves attribulnble to lie eqnity holders of the Company,
as aoolicable.

Company's adjnsted net debl lo equity ratio as at 31 dMarch 2018 is as follow: {Rs. in million)
Gearing Ratle Asal Asal Asat

ming Al March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
Bormrowings (Nole | LA & 11B] 51125 773.79 798.96
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Nele 5D) (112.55) {112.45) (95.60)
Adjnsted Net deht {A) 398.70 §61.34 703.36
Egquity 1,444.52 1,201.06 1,029.65
Total equlty (D) 144452 1,201.06 1,029.65
Total equily and nel deht [C = (A+D)} 1,843,22 1,864,390 1,733.01
Gearing Ratio (A/C) 21.63% 35.58% 40.59%

Tn order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital manapement, amongst other llings, ainis lo ¢ngure that it meels financial covenams attached to the interest-bearing loans and
barrowings that define capilal structure requireineots. Breaches in ineeting the financial covenants wonld pennil the bank 1o iinmedialely call loans and borrowings. There have been no
breaches In the financial covenants of any interesl-bearing loans and bomowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes [or managing capital durinp the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017,
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45, Falr Valnes

The Camying values of financial instruments by categories is as under:

{Rs. in million)
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017 1 April 2016
Amortized Cost  FVTPL  FVTOCI  Amortlzed Cost  FVTPL  FVTOCI  Amortized Cost  FVTPL _ FYTOC1
Assets

Finnnelal assets

- Trade reccivables

- Loans

- Investmenls

- Other financial assels

- Cash and cash equivalenls

Non Current Fluanclal Habilities
- Borrewings
- Other financial liabilities

Current Financial liabilities
- Borrowings

- Trade payahles

- Other financial liabilities

1,567.18 - - 1,574.33
33.30 - - 38.55
70.00 1000
10.81 4128

112,55 - . 112.45
44795 - - 263.93
4,17 - . 19.62
479.30 511.85
493,19 - - 862.06
73.26 - - 195.73

1,273.40 - -
26,28 - -
84.20
22.84
95.60 - -

334.01 - -
19.40 - -

464.95
666.87 - -
6536 - -

The Iair values of ¢urremt financial assels like irade receivables, foans and cash & cash equivalenis and cirrenl financial liabilities like lrade payables and otler crrcol financial
liabilities are considered to be same a4 their carrying values dne lo their short tenu nature,

The carrying amounts of ¢lher ilems carried at amoriized cosl are reasonable approximalioo of their fair values.

The Company classilies all its financial asseis and Gnaucial liabilities lo be measured al amortized cosl, Henct he company has ol classified ils fioancial instraments into lhree levels
of fair value measoremeud hierarchy in accordance with the relevand aceounding slandards

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank}
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46, Major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 are as follows:

47,

Profit or loss section

(Rs. in million)

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Current income tax
Current ineomne tax charge

Deferved tax
Relating to origination and reversal of timing differences

Incoine tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

OCI se¢tion

112.16 91.32
6.15 (3.79)
11831 87.53

{Rs. in million)

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Dieferred tax related to items reeognised in OCI during Lhe year
Net loss/{gain) on remeasurement of defined benelit plan

Income tax charged to OC!

1.94

(L91)

1.94

(L.97)

Reconeiliation of tax expense and the aceounling profit inultiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018:

(Rs. in million})

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 Maveh 2018 31 March 2017
Accomnting profit before tax 364.46 254.23
At India's slatutory incone tax rale of 34.608% (31 March 2017: 34.608%) 126,13 87.98
Non deduetible expenses 422 2.18
Pennanent differcnce 8.21) -
Ineome taxahle at lower that statutory (ax rate - (223
Others {3.83) {0.40)
Al the elfcctive income tax rate of 32.29% (31 March 2017; 34.43%) 118.31 87.53
Income lax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 118.31 87.53

Employee stock compensation expense

In 2012, the ultimaie holding comnpany instituted the ESOP Scheme 2012 (the “ESOP 20127), Under the ESOP plan, the committce may
grant awards of equity based stock options being Growih options to the employees of witimate holding company and its snbsidiaries, As per the
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) [02 “Share based payments”, the Company receiving the services shall measure the services received as
an equify seitled transaction and reqnired to record compensation cosl aud disclose information relating to Lhe shares granted to the employees
of the Company, under the above Plan. Since, (he plan is assessed, managed and administercd by thie nltimate holding eompany, the Compauy
has taken stock option cost perfains to options granted to the eployec of the Company as caleulated by the ultimate holding Company under

Ind AS 102.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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48. The Shareholders of Yikas Publishiug Honse Private Limited (transfecee} and Rajendra Ravindra Printer Private Limited (Lransferor) (RIRPL), a subsidiary of § Chand and Company

49,

=

Limited {formerly § Chand and Company Privale Limiled) (SCCL), had approved a scheme of amalgamation (lhe scheme) u/s 391-394 of the Companies Act, 1956 and applicable
provisions of Companies Act 2013 (lo Lhe exient applicable). In aecordance with the seheme RRPL merged vwith the Company w.e.l. 1st April, 2014. The Hon’ble Delhi High Court
had given its approval 1o the Schieme on February 18, 2616 and order wag reccived by (he company on April 7, 2016. The approved seheme was filed with the Registrar of Companies
on April 27, 2016 and the Seheine became effeelive from snch dale. Assels and liabilities, rights and obligation of the RRPL were lransfened mlo the Company (as provided in 1be
Selieme).

During FY 2G12-13, Rajendra Raviodra Printing Privaie Limiled "Amalgamaling Company” bad sold its certain land and bnilding (acquired in 1972) 1o {15 wholly owned snbsidiary,
and elaimed exeinption nnder seclion 47(iv) of Ineome Tax Act, 1961 (“Aet”). However, by virtue of merger of RRPL, the subsidiary company eeases to be wholly owned subsidiary of
RRPL belore expiry of 8 years from 1he date of transfer, accordingly, eapital gains elaimed as exempl under section 47{iv}, wonld now be taxable in Lhe year of transfer due 1o trigger
of seclion 47A, Considering this, tnx liability for Its 33.51 million las been recognised in Lhe bocks of accounts. The eompany has filed an applieation will the deparimenl.

Slgoiflennt reconnting judgements, cstimntes and nssumptlons

The preparation of lhe eompany’s finuncint slalemenls in conforiuity with the Indian Acconnting Standords requires managemsent to make judgemenis, eslimales und assumplions thal
uflcel the reported amounts of reveones, expenses, assels and liabililies, and the aceompaoying disclosures (inelnding contingent liabilities). The management believes thal the
estimales used in preparalion of the fioaneial statemenls are prudeol and reasonable, Uneerlainty abont (hese assmmplions aud estimales conld resnll in onleomes that reqnire a material
adjnstinent o the carryiog amonui of assels or liabililies affected in fulnre periods.

A, Judgemenis

In the process of applying the company's neeounting policies, manugement has made the following judgements, whieh lave the vost signifieant effec on llie nmonnis reeognised in the
financial slalements:

Opernling lense commilmenis — Company ns a Lessee

The Company has entered inlo lease agreements wilh lessor aod has delenmined, based on an evaluation of the temms and eondilions of the arrangements, such as the lease 1ermm not
conslitnling a major parl of the economie life of the eommereial property and 1he fair value of (he asset, thal il does not retaing lhe significanl risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties and nccounts for (e contraels as operaling lenses.

B. Estimates and Assumptinns

The key nssumptions eoncerning the fulure and olher key sourees of eslimalion uneertainty at the reporting date, that have n significant risk of causing a malerial ndjusimenl (o the
carrying amounts of nssels and Iinbililies wilhin (he next financial year, are described below, The Company based ils assumptions and estimates on paramelers nvnilable when 1he
finaneinl sinlemenls were prepared, Exisiing circumstanecs and assumpiions aboni fislure developments, however, may change due to markel changes or eircumsiances arising lhat are
beyond the eonirol of tbe Company. Such changes are refllected in the nssumplions when they occur, Eslimates and vnderlying assnmplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions lo aeconnling estimates arc recognised prospectively.

Taxes
Defetred 1ax assels are recogoised 10 the extent il is probable that taxable profils will be available againsl which the losses can be ulilised. Significanl management judgement is

required to delemmnine (he amoumt of deferred 1ax assels thal can he recognised, based upon the likely liming and (le level of fulnre laxnble profils together with fulure lax plasming
siralegies.

Delined Leneflt plnns (gratuity)
The eost of lhe defined Lenefil gratnity plan and tlie preseni valne of the pratuity obligation ure detenmined using acinarial valualions, An achsarial valnntion involves making varions
assumptions that may difler from nelnal developments in the fulure. These inelnde the determination of the disconnt rale, fnture salary iacreases and moralily rales. Due Lo the

complexities involved in Lhe valnalion and ils long-lerm nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assnmptious. All ussnmplions are reviewed al each
reporting dale,

The parameter moslt subjecl lo change is 1he disconnl rale, In detennining the approprise discount rate, the management eonsiders lhe interesl rales of goverameul bonds willt (erm
thal eorrespond with Lhe expected lerm of 1he defined benefit obligation,

The mortality rate is based on publicly available moralily tables. Those mortality lebles 1end to change only nl interval In response lo demograplic changes. Fulnre salary jnercases and
graluily increases are based on expected fulure infintion rates for the respeclive comitries.

Furlher details abont gralnity oblipalions are given in Nole 29.

Provision for decommissioning

In ineasuring the provision [or site resloralion obligalion, the company uses the lechnical eslimates 1o delermine the expected eost of dismanlliog and removing the improvement or
infrastrueture for properties under lease, Discout rate ure determined based on the governmeni bond rate of a similar period as the liability.

Provision for trade receivable

Trade receivables do not ¢arry any inlerest and are sfaled al their nominal value as reduced by appropriale allowances for eslimaled irrecoverable amounls. Eslimaled irrecoveralre
amounls 2re based on llie ugeing of Lhe receivable balances and listorical experience adjusted for forward-looking eslimmates. [adividual trade reecivables are written off when
managewmenl deems them not lo be eollestible. For details of allowanee for doubtfnl debts please refer Note 5B,
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i)

lmpairmeni of nont-financial pssets
The ¢arrying moounts of the Company’s non-financinl assets, olher than delerred lax nssets, are reviewed al the end of ench reporting period to delerminc whether there i3 any
indicalion of inpairmenl. If any such indicnlion exisls, then the assel’s recoverable amount is eslimaled.

The recoverable amount of an assel or cash-generating unit (*CGU’) js the greater of ils value in use and ils fair velue fess costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the eslimated fulure
cash flows are disconuled (o (heir presenl valnc nsiog a pre-1ax discount rate that reflects cnment market assessmenls of Lhe time valne of money and the risks specific 10 the asset or
CGU. For the pnrpose of impairment {esling, nssels Lhal cannot be iested individnally are gronped together into the smallest gronp of assels thal generales cash inflows from conlinning
use that nre largely independent of the cnsh inflows of other assels or groups ol assets (*CGU’).

Markel relaled information and eslimates arc nsed lo delenning the recoverable awoomil. Key assnmplions on which managemeni has based ils determinalion of recoverable amonni

ioclnde estimated long term prowlh rales, weighled averape cost of capilal and estimated operating margins. Cash fiow projections (ake mio acconnl past experience and represent
[ 's besl eslimale about fotore develc !

P

First-lime adoption of Ind AS

These financinl stalcrments, for the year ended 31 March 2018, are lhe frst the Compauny has prepared in accordance wilh Ind AS, For periods up to and inclading the year ended 31
March 2017, the Company prepared ils [mancial statemrenls in accordance with accounling slandards notified under section 133 of the Compauies Acl 2013, read logether with
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Acconnis) Rules, 2014 (Previons GAAP). Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for
periods ending on 31 March 2018, together with the comparative period dnta as al and for the year ended 31 March 2017, as described in the sviumary of significan( acconnling
policies. 1o preparing these financizl statements, the Company’s opening balnnce shest was prepared as nt | April 2016, the Compnny's dale of Iransilion (o Ind AS.

This note cxplains exemplions availed by the Company in restuling ils Previons GAAP financial slatements, incinding (he halance sheel as al 1 April 2016 and the finaucial siatcments
s al and for the year ended 31 Masch 2017.

Oplienal Exemptions Applied: .
Ind AS 101 allows first-lime adoplers cerlain exemptions from the retrospeclive application of cerfain reqnirements nnder Ind AS. The Company has apphed the following exemplions.

Deemed cost of Pruperty, plant and eqnipment and Inlanglble pssels

Ind AS 107 permils a first-time adopler, where there is no ehange io functional currency, (o elect 1o continne with the carrying valne for all of ils properly, plant and equipment as
recognised in Lhe [inancial staiements ns al the date of transitioo lo Ind AS, measnred ns per Lhe previons GAAP and use thal as its deemed cost as ol Lhe dale of Lransilion afler making
necessary adjustivents for de-commissioning liabililies, This exemplion can also be used for intangible assels covered by Ind AS 38 Inlangible Assets,

Accordingly, the company has eleeted (o measure all of ils property, plant and equipment and inlanpible assets al their previons GAAP carying value,

luvestmendis o subsidiaries*
As per the requirements of Ind AS 27, Company has opled to reeord its investment in subsidiary al cost. Ind AS 101 provides that while measuring investment at cast, an enlity shall
measure Ibnl investment at one of the following amounts in ils scparate apening Ind AS Balance Sheel:
(i) cost determined in accordance wilh Ind AS 27; or
(ii) deemed cosl. The deemed cost of such an investmen! shall be iig:-
{a) fair value al the entity’s dale of (ransiliou to Ind ASs in its separnle linancial stalemenls; or
(b} previous GAAP carrying amounl al thal date.
Accordingly, company has apled lo record its investinent in subsidiary al previous GAAP carryiog amnoun nl lransilion date,
(*Investmenl in subsidianics includes mvestment in snbsidiary ol holding company}

Reconcitiationy

Following reconcilialions aloug with fool noles for the GAAP adjustinents is iuseried:

- Reconciliation of equily ns at 1 April 2016 {the date of iransilion to nd A8} {Annexure I)
- Reconcilistion of equily as al 31 March 2017 (Aumexure Iu}

- Recouciliulinn of prefil and loss for year ended 31 March 2017 {Annexure IIh)

(This sprce has been intentionally left blank)
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Annexure [ - Reconciliation of equity as at 1 April 2616 (the date of transition to Ind AS)

(Rs. in milliow)
Particulars Foot notes Indian GAAP*  Ind AS Adj Ind AS
Assets
Non-cnrrent assets
Property, plant and equipment 675,81 - 675.81
Intangible assets
- Goodwill 2.36 - 2.36
- Other intangible assets 85.15 - 85.15
Capital work-in-progress 0.67 - 0.67
Financial assels
- Inveslments 84.20 - 84.20
- Loans 3 7.84 (1.82) 6.02
- Other [linancial assels 22.84 - 22,84
Other nen-current assets 3 3.93 1.76 5.69
Deferred lax assels (net} 5 040 294 3.34
Total nou-current assets 883.20 2.88 §86.08
Current assets }
Inventories 367.89 - 367.89
Finaneial assels -
- Trede receivables 7 1,281.67 (8.27) 1,273.40
- Loans 3 20.64 (0.38) 20.26
- Cash and cash cqnivalents 95.60 - 95.60
Other current assels 3 4.07 0.31 4.38
Total current asscls 1,769.87 (8.34) 1,761.53
Total assets 2,653.07 {5.46) 2,647.61
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capilal 401 - 4.01
Other equity
- Retained eamings 933.59 (5.96) 927.63
- Other reserves 9 97.51 0,50 98.01
Total equity 1,035,11 (5.46) 1,02%.65
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 334,04 - 334.01
- Trade payables 0.62 - 0.62
Provisions 19.40 - 19.40
‘Total non enrrcnt liabilities . 354.03 - 354.03
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Bomrowings 464.95 - 464.95
- Trade payables 666.87 - 666.87
- Olher financial liabilities 65,36 - 65.36
Provisions 29.54 - 29.54
Otlher eurrent liabilities 37.21 - 37.21
Total current liabilities 1,263.93 - 1,263.23
Total equity and Uabllities 2,653.07 {5.46) 2,647.61

(*Indian Gaap nuinbers have been regrouped to eonfonn to classifications as per Ind AS)
e,

ot
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Annexnre TIn - Recoacilintion of equity as at 31 March 2017

{Rs. in million)
Parliculats Foot notes Indian GAAP? Ind AS Adj Ind AS

Assels

Non-¢arrent asscis

Troperty, plant and equipment 701.64 - T0L.64
Intangible assets

~ Goodwill 6 - 2.36 2.36
- Other intangible assels 117.39 - 117.29
Capilal work in progress B . -
Financial assets

- Investments 70.00 - 70.00
- Loans 3 14,08 (1.66) 12,42
- Other linancial assets 4,02 - 4.02
Other non-current assets 3 1.21 1.50 271
Tucome tax assets (nct) 1.43 - 143
Deferred tax assets (net) 5 (2.64) 7.85 521
Total non-cnrrent assets %07.13 10.05 217.18
Current assets

Inventories 448,52 39,39 487.91
Financial assels

- Trade reecivables 7 1,637.35 (63.02) 1,574.33
~ Loans 3 26.48 (0.35) 26.13
- Cash and cash equivalents 112.45 - 112.45
= Other financial assets 3726 - 37.26
Other curren assels 3 4.00 0.29 4.29
Total current assets 220000 {23.69) 2,242.37
Total assets 3.173.1¢ {13.64) 3,159.55

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Equity share capifal 4.01 - 4,01
Olher equity

- Retained camings 1,113.18 (1540} 1,097.78
- Other reserves 9 97.51 1.76 99.27
Total equity 1,214.70 {13.64) 1,201.06

Non-cnrrent liabilities
Financial liabilities .
- Bormrowings 263.93 - . 263.93

Provisions 19.62 - 19.62
Total non current liabilities 283.55 - 283.55
Cnrrent Habilities

Finaneial liabilities

- Borrowings 511.85 - 511.85
~ Tradc payables 862,06 - 862.06
- (Mher tinancial liabilities 195.73 - 195.73
Provisions 64.75 - 64.75
Other current liabilitics 40.55 - 40,55
Totaol current liabilities 1,674.94 - 1,674.94
Total cqnity and Uabilitles 3,173.19 {13.64) 3,159,553

(*Indian Gaap numbers have been regrouped to conform to classifications as per Ind AS)
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Anuoexure I1Ib - Reconglliatton of profit and loss for year ended 31 March 2017

(R, In milifony

Parileulpcs Foot notes Indian GAAP  lInd AS Adj Ind AS
[ Revenue froin Operations 2,469.37 (68.32) 240105
11 Other Income 3 36.87 025 37.12
11 Total Income (T+I1) 2,506.24 68.07) 2,438.17
IV Expeunses
Cost of raw material consumed 299.96 - 899.96
Cos! of printing material consumed 109.08 - 109.08
(Increase)/decrease i invenlories of Bnished goods and work in progress (30.88) (39.39) (70.27)
Publication expenses 415.01 - 415,01
Employce benefits expense 4and 9 288.83 6.63 295.46
Selling and distribution expenses 8 204,00 {28.92) 175.08
Finance cost 13116 - 131.16
Depreeialion aud amortisation expense 6 94.44 (2.36) 92,08
Other expenses 7 120,71 15.67 136.38
Tolal expenses 2,232.31 (48.37) 2,183.94
V Profit before tax (ITI-1V) 273,93 {19.70) 254.23
V1 Tax expense:
Current tax 91,32 - 91.32
Drefened tax (eredity clarge 5 3.04 (6.84) (3.79)
Tolal tAx expenses 94,36 6.84 87.53
VIT Prefit for the period (V-VI) 179.56 {12.86) 166.70
VIIT Other Comprehensive Income
- llems that will not he reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefil plans 4 - 5.36 5.36
Tax imnpact on re-ineasurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 4 - (1.91) {1.91)
IX Total Comprebensive Iucome for the period (Y1 + VIII) 179,56 {241 170.15

Fooluotes to the reconciliation of eqnity as at April 1, 2016 and Mareh 31, 2017 rud profit or loss Tor the year ended March 31, 2017 are as below:-

1)

1,

L

3)

4,

o

5,

s

6.}

Investments

Under previous GAAP, eurrent investments were ineasured al lower of Cost or fair value, Under Ind AS these financials assels are classified as FYTPL and the
changes in fair value are recognised in statement of profit and loss. On the transilion date, these financial assets have been measured at their Rir value which is
ligher than its cost as per previous GAAP, resulling in an increasc/decrease in carrying value of the vestments wilh corresponding increase/decrease being
reeognised in eguity.

Investments in sahsidiaries - deented eosf exemption

Under previous GAAP, investmenls in subsidiardes were measured at cosl, Under Ind AS, the Company has eleeted the option of fair value investinents in certain
subsidiarics basis the requirements of Ind A8 101, First Time adoption of Indian Aecounting Standards for deriving the carrying value of these mvestments (decmed
cost).

Non Current Financial nssets/ Fioancial labilities

Under previous GAAP, certain now-current financial assets/ fiabilities which were measuwred at cost/ best eslimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation,
al the balunce sheet dale withowl considering the alfect of discounting wliere as these are measured at the present value on the balance sheet date under Ind AS,
Accordingly the Coinpany has recognised the adjustments {o the respective carrying awount and the consequeut impact on finance cost fnance income due to
unwinding of the discounting impact. The comesporkling impact ou the date of transition has been recognised in equity.

Renmeasurement differences
Under previous GAAP, there was no concepl of other comprehensive income and hence, provious GGAATP profit is reconciled to total comprehensive incoine as per
Ind AS, Under previous GAAP, the remeasunments of the net defined beuefit liability were recoguised in the statement of profit and loss however under Ind AS, said

_remcasurement differences net of the related (ax inpacl are recognised in the other compreheasive income.

Deferred Tax B
Under Ind AS, the Compauy has recognised the consequential tax implications ou the impact ou accoiml of adjustments cxplai d above.

Goodwlill amoritsation
Under previous GAAP, goodwill was amonised on straight line basis over a period of 10 years, Under Ind A8, Goods¥ill is required to be Lested for impainnent at
t of profit and loss.
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7. Provisinn for cxoccted eredlt loss
Under previous GAAP, provision was being made on financial assets on incurred Joss nodel. Under Ind AS, provision on financial assets is required to be madc as
per expected credit loss model considering the expected cash shortfalls fromn sueh financial assets and delay in expected realization from such Fnancial assets.

8,) Revenue recognition
Under previous GAAP, rebate and discount were shown as an expensc. Under Ind AS, revenuc is measured al fair valuc of the consideration received or receivable
laking into aceount the antount of any tmdc discount and volume rebate allowed by the cotity.

9. Emuplovee Stock optlon expense
Under previous GAAP, employce stock options given by bolding company to the employees of sushdiary eomnpany were noi accounled for in subsidiary cornpany.
Under Ind AS, the holding cempay Las capilalised snch expeuse under fuvestiment io subsidiary and the sabsidiary las recognised employee slock oplien expense
with the cormosponding credit in decmed capital coniribution

51 Previous period fligures
Previous year Fgures have been regrouped / reclassificd, where necessary, Lo conform (o Lhis year’s classification.

The accompanying noles are an integral part of'the financial statemments.
As per our report of even date
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